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December 2, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Medicaid Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. (Vendor# 271968), 35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611, to
continue managing statewide non-emergency medical transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service
members, by increasing the price limitation by $318,672 from $13,237,738 to $13,556,410 and by
extending the completion date from December 31, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 55% Federal Funds, 44% General Funds and 1% Other Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 28,
2017 (Item #A). as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
February 21, 2018 (Item #6); and as amended (Amendment #2) and approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on December 19, 2018, (Item #10).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $1,207,200 $0 $1,207,200

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $6,208,574 $0 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $3,032,370 $0 $3,032,370

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $0 $0 $0

Subtotals $10,448,144 50 $10,448,144
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05-95-47-470010-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT OF HHS; OFC

OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY. NH Granite Advantage Health Care Trust
Fund

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729.
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 $0

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 ' $19,297 $0 $19,297

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004369 $19,297 $36,934 $56,231

Subtotals $38,594 $36,934 $75,528

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY. Medicaid Care Management

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $271,620 $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $1,510,247 $0 $1,510,247

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $859,784 $0 $859,784

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $109,349 $274,948 ,  $384,297

Subtotals $2,751,000 $274,948 $3,025,948

05-95-47-470010-7051 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OFC MEDICAID SERVICES: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. CHILD HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004058 $0 $6,790 $6,790

Subtotals $0 $6,790 $6,790

TOTALS $13,237,738 $318,672 $13,556,410
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because a previous amendment increased the total contract value
by more than ten percent (10%). The Department is in agreement with renewing services again, for six
(6) months of the remaining (4) years while the Department re-procures the same services through the
competitive bidding process, with the possibility of the Department requesting another limited extension
should the re-procurement of services not be completed by June 30, 2020.

The purpose of this request is to ensure up to 2,400 Medicaid members in the State's Fee-For-
Service delivery system continue to have access to non-emergency transportation to all Medicaid-
covered services and/or receive assistance with paying for travel costs to appointments. State Medicaid
programs are required to provide necessary and appropriate transportation, including the provision of
non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair van services, for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home
or nursing facility to Medicaid-covered services

Outside of this contract, individuals in the Medicaid Care Management Program currently receive
non-emergent medical transportation services through one (1) of the three (3) Medicaid Managed Care
Organizations that administer benefits to most Medicaid members in New Hampshire. The Department
must provide non-emergency medical transportation services to Medicaid members who remain in the
Medicaid Fee-For-Service delivery system, as required by federal statute 42 CFR 431.53. Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. manages Medicaid's non-emergency medical transportation program for
all Fee-For-Service members. The transportation benefit offers non-emergency medical transportation to
eligible members to attend Medicaid-covered services to medical, behavioral health and dental
appointments. In addition, the contract covers pharmacy pick-ups, and non-emergency physical transfers
from one facility to another.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. manages the non-emergency medical transportation
program through a variety of statewide transportation vendors, which includes taxi wheelchair vans, non-
emergency ambulances, vans and stretcher vans. The network is sometimes required to take members
to out-of-state facilities, as well.

In addition. Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. maintains a Call Center in Concord, New
Hampshire, to schedule transportation for members as well as answer member and provider questions.
The Call Center has a bilingual staff who are fluent in English and Spanish and have access to
interpreters for other languages as needed. Members who have a hearing and speech impairment can
access transportation services through a special phone line.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. also manages the Family and Friends Mileage
Reimbursement program, which is a reimbursement program that allows members to request financial
reimbursement for mileage to covered Medicaid services.

The following groups of individuals receive services under this contract:

•  Individuals in the Medicaid Spenddown Group;

•  Newly-eligible Medicaid recipients eligible for retroactive;

•  Individuals enrolled in the Health Insurance Premium Program;

•  Individuals who are eligible through Presumptive Eligibility; and

•  Individuals receiving Veterans Administration benefits with Veterans Administration
income.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, that
allows the Department to renew the contract for up to five (5) years, subject to the continued availability
of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council.
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The agreement was extended for one (1) of the five (5) years in Amendment #2, approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on December 19, 2018 (Item #10).

The Contractor's effectiveness in delivering services will be measured through monitoring of the
following performance measures:

•  Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Scheduled Trip On-Time Provider Rate;

•  Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Scheduled Trip Provider No Show Rate;

•  Provider Site Visit Summaries. Provider Network and Provider Termination Reports;

•  Utilization of Mileage Reimbursement Program; and

•  Call Center Monitoring including the average speed to answer, average hold time, abandoned
calls.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. New Hampshire Medicaid
recipients in the Fee-For-Service delivery system may not have transportation to and from non-
emergency Medicaid covered appointments and services. If non-emergency transportation services are
not available to Fee-For-Service participants, the Department would be in violation of federal statute 42
CFR 431.53, assurance of transportation for Medicaid recipients to Medicaid covered services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 55% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health & Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program, Medicaid; Title XIX, CFDA
#93.779; Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 1905NH5MAP; 44% General Funds and 1% Other
Funds (Medicaid Expansion).

In the event that the Federal and Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



~ STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hnzen Dr., Concord, Ni l 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

December 4,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. (Vendor# 271968) Trumbull, CT as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2017-
041C.

The purpose of this request is a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. to continue to provide Medicaid fee-for-service participants with
access to non-emergency transportation to Medicaid covered services.

The funding amount for this amendment is not to exceed $318,672, increasing the current
contract from $13,237,738 to $13,556,410. This amendment also extends the completion
date from December 31,2019 to June 30,2020, and shall become effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval through June 30,2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

n

Sincerely,

nis Goulet

DG/kaf

DoIT 2017-04IC

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants

State of New Hampshire
^  Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Transportation Management for
Medicaid Fee>for«Service Participants Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT, 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 28, 2017 (Item A); and as amended (Amendment #1), approved by the Governor and Executive

Council on February 21, 2018 (item #6); and as amended (Amendment #2), approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on December 19, 2018 (Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Delete P-37 Subiect: Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Program
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Fee-For-Services (FFS) Participants (RFB-2017-
OMBP-02-TRANS) and replace with the following:

Subiect: Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-For-Service Participants (RFB-2017-OMBP-
02-TRANS)

2. Form P-37, Block 1.7, Completion Date to read:

June 30, 2020.

3. Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read:

$13,556,410.

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety and replace with Exhibit
8 - Amendment #3, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

5. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment #2 in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit
B-1 Transportation Rates - Amendment #3.

6. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements (v.6/2017) and replace with Exhibit K,
Information Security Requirements (v.5 10/09/18).

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials'^-^^
RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A03 Page1of3 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medlcald Fee-for-Servlce Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date / /

State of New Hamtshire

Department of Hot th and Human Services

y

121

Date

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

Name:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of cut County of on ^oJ < 13^ 2^*^ . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

toflgkm FVl.
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATHLEEN M. GRASSMANN
NOTARY PUBLIC OF CONNECTICUT

My Commission Expires: My CommlssiQn Expires 5/31/2022
,  ""ij,

•  ■ '-i

V.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Amendment #3

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01 -AOS Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

II
Date

Titi™Y flN'oS.
I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Amendment #3

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Services Participants

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. This Contract is funded with:

2.1. 11% General Funds,

2.2. 6% Other Funds (Medicaid Expansion), and

2.3. 83% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medicaid Title XIX, Medical
Assistance Program. Federal Funds are contingent upon meeting the
requirements set forth in the Catalogue of Family and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA)# 93.778.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded Contractor's current and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed an Administrative Capitation Rate
Per Member/Per Month (PMPM) in accordance with Exhibit 8-1 - Amendment
#3, Transportation Rates, for Medicaid Fee-For-Service (FFS) participants.

4.1.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed the PMPM Capitation Rate monthly for
each FFS participant eligible during the previous month in accordance
with Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #3, Transportation Rates. The PMPM
Capitation Rate will be processed on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month
for the previous month and will be paid within thirty (30) days.

4.1.2. The Contractor shall refund the Department capitation payments made
for deceased members upon the Department's request.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for Actual Transportation Costs by
the fifth (5*^) business day of the month, for the previous month, along with the
an Excel spreadsheet, in an agreed upon formal, listing each transportation
service provided by procedure code in accordance with Exhibit 8-1 -
Amendment #3, Transportation Rates, with the cost of service.

4.2.1. Invoices and Excel spreadsheets for Actual Transportation Costs must
be emailed to the Department's Non-Emergency Medical Transportation
(NEMT) electronic mailbox (email address will be provided).

4.3. The Contractor shall submit transportation encounters through the NH Medicaid
Management Information System (MMIS) in the Accredited Standards
Committee (ASC) XI2 837P claim format.

Coordinated Transportation Services, inc. Exhibit B - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials

RFB.2017-OMBP-TRANS-01-A03 Page 1 of 2 Date I > - l3 - ) ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Servlces Participants

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

4.4. The Contractor shall receive capitation payment information from MMIS using
the ASC X12N 820 Professional transaction or other supplemental payment
reports.

4.5. The State will make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice. The Contractor
will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs
and services.

4.6. A final payment request shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty
(40) days after the contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation
as identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided,
or if the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Coordinated Transportation Services. Inc. Exhibit B - Amendment #3 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medlcaid Fee For Service Participants

Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #3

Transportation Rates

1. The capped Administrative Rate to manage transportation benefits for Medlcaid Fee-for-Service

(FFS) participants shall be at a rate of $3.38 Per Member Per Month (PMPM).

2. The Fee-for-Service (FFS) rates for direct transportation costs for Medlcaid FFS participants shall be

in accordance with the table below:

Fee^for-Servlce Transportation Rates Paid to CIS Providers
AOIOO Taxi/Livery Base (includes first 5 miles) 10.00

S0215 Taxi/Livery Mileage (after mile 5) $1.25/mile

S021S three T/L transportation providers in the

CTS Network are on a different mileage fee

schedule (from first mile)

$1.60/mile - Adventure Transportation

$1.50/mlle - Abba Transportation

$1.25/mlle -- Nashua Express

A0130 Wheel Chair Accessible Base $27.35

A1030 one WC provider is on a different base

fee schedule

$30.00 -- AMR

S0209 Wheel Chair Mileage (from first mile) $2.46/mile

S0209 one WC provider is on a different mileage

fee schedule (from first mile)

$3.00/mile -- AMR

A0426 Advanced Life Support Ambulance base $154.23-$175.00

AOllO Public Transportation Actual Cost

A0170 Parking Fees, Tolls, Lodging Actual Cost

A0390 Advanced Life Support Ambulance

Mileage (from first mile)

$2.60

A0428 Basic Life Support Ambulance Base $145.00

A0380 Basic Life Support Ambulance Mileage

(from first mile)

$2.60

T2005 Stretcher Van Base (includes first 5 miles) $100.00

T2049 Stretcher Van Mileage (after mile 5) $2.46

T2003 Unloaded miles Mileage rate by mode, above, calculated

based on the number of miles between a

provider's base location over twenty miles and

the covered individual's pickup location

T2007 Wait Time: Paid in 15-minute increments** Fee Range: $12.00 to $25.00 per hour

A0090 Friends & Family Mileage Reimbursement $0.31/mlle current, subject to adjustment by
NH DHHS

'Wait Time Is paid:

1) When dollar amount is less than paying the mileage for driver to return to base.

2) For ambulance trips when member stays on the stretcher during the appointment.

Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #3

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A03

Page i of 1

Contractor Initials: ^
Dale: H j 3 "



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials QkW
DHHS information

Security Requirements j *? — I Q
Page 1 of 9 Date LL—AT ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Coniractorinitlals^^^
DHHS Information

Security Requirements i ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has.an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Coniraclorlnltials^^^ ̂
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its

sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Page 9 of 9 Dale
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that COORDINATED

TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC. is a Connecticut Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on August 02, 2005. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretarj' of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this ofilce is concerned.

Business ID: 542053

Certificate Number: 000420560 i

u.

e

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th dav of October A.D. 2018.

w.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Office of the Secretary of the Slate of Connecticut

1, the Connecticut Secretary of the State, and keeper of the seal thereof,

DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that the certificate of incorporation of

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

a domestic NONSTOCK corporation, was filed in this office on September 26, 1997, a certificate of

dissolution has not been filed, the corporation has filed all annual reports, and so far as indicated by the

records of this office such corporation is in existence.

Secretary of the State

Date Issued: February 09, 2012

Business ID: 0572619 Express Certificate Number: 2012041818001
Note: To verify this certificate, visit the web site http;//www.concord.sols.ct.eov



11/14/2019 Commercial Recording Division

Business Inquiry

Business Details

Bu.ine«Namo: CWRD.NATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. Citizenship/State Inc: Dom..tlcrt:T

Business ID; 0572819 Last Report Filed Year 2018

Business Address: J^NUTMEG DR.VE. SUITE 120. TRUMBULU CT. Business Type: Nori-StocK

Mailing Address: TRUMBULU CT. Status: Active

Date Irtc/Reglstration: Sep 26,1997

Annual Report Due Date: 09/25/2019

Principals Details

Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

DAVID L. WHITE PRESIDENT ORIVE. SUITE 120, TRUMBULL, CT, g VVHITE BIRCH DR. MILFORD. CT, 06460

AO CHAPEL STREET. UNIT 214. MILFORD. CT. 06460

62 FEDERAL ROAD, DANBURV. CT. 06810

IMPORTANT: There are more principals for this t>uslness that are not shown here.

Agent Summary

Agent Name NEUBERT. PEPE & MONTEfTH, P.C.

Agent Business Address 195 CHURCH ST.. 13TH FL. ATTN: JUDY K. WEINSTEIN, ESa. NEW HAVEN. CT. 06510

Agent Residence Address NONE

View All Principals(4) J

https://www.concord-sots.ct.gov/CONCORD/onllne?sn=Pubiiclnquiry&eid=9740 1/1



Commercial Recording Division Page 1 of 1

Business Inquiry

Filing History

Bu*in«si ID

0672619

Filing Numb«r Filing Date/Time

0001762456 26. 1997 8:30

0001912087 04, 1998 6:30

0002027429

0002162350 Sep 05, 2000 8:30

0002326393 Jap 14, 2001 8:30

0002523166 ^02.2002 8:30

0002712965 ^ 23,2003 8:30

0002853647 Sap 30, 2004 8:30

Oct 19, 2005 8:30
0003106281

Oct 10 2006 8'30
0003312642 w lu. o.ju

0003530749 05. 2007 8:30

0003776632 Jap 09, 2008 8:30

0004039437 2009 9:20

0004279203 Jap 27, 2010 6:30

Feb09. 2012 9:23
0004523169

0004849715 26. 2013 8:30

0004966413 ^22,2013 2:12

0005061184 Fab 27. 2014 12:00

0005165032 Au®'S. 2014 12:16

0005396975 Jap 16, 2015 4:07

0005685993 2016 9:01

0005928544 Jap 18-2017 12:24

0006250514 JjP 25. 2018 12:00

Buainesa Nama

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.

Effactiva

Datarrima

Nov04.1998 8:30

AM

Oct 01.1999 8:30

AM

Sap 05. 2000 8:30
AM

Sap 14. 2001 6:30
AM

Oct 02. 2002 8:30
AM

Oct 23. 2003 8:30

AM

Sap 30, 2004 8:30
AM

Fab 27. 2014

12:00 PM

Filing Typa

INCORPORATION B

ORG REPORT B

REPORT (1999) B

REPORT (2000) B

REPORT (2001) B

REPORT (2002) B

REPORT (2003) B

REPORT (2004) B

REPORT (2005) B

REPORT (2006) B

REPORT (2007) B

REPORT (2008) B

REPORT (2009) B

REPORT (2010) B

REPORT(2011) B

REPORT (2012) B

REPORT (2013) B

AGENT B

REPORT (2014) B

REPORT (2015) B

REPORT (2016) B

REPORT (2017) B

REPORT (2018) B

Voluma

Typa
Voluma

00149

00230

00293

00364

00446

00550

00647

00722

00859

00967

01079

01206

01341

01469

01605

01795

01860

01913

01971

02101

02262

02397

02578

Start Paga Paga 8

1237 6

3438 2

2794 3

1525

2019

2795

0047

1399

1996

1643

1477

3593

1194

0655

2499

0852

3061

1808

'3546

1406

2174

2458

0213

Actiona

View Html

View Html

View Html

View Html

View Html

View Html

View Html

https://www.concord-sols.ct.gov/CONCORD/PublicInquiry?eid=9748&businessID=0572... 11/15/2019



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Richard Schreiner , hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Secretary of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken iat a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Nnvpmhpr 14 ?niR , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting. •

VOTED: That David L. White

Is duly authorized on behalf of Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract amendment to which .this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is understood that the
State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy
the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New.Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: |_/ IihIici<]
Richard Schreiner, Secretary

STATE OF CONNECTICUT

County of Irgnr-Px'jJ ■

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this I 4 ̂  day of M 0 20/Q,

By
Richard Schreiner, Secretary

(Notary Public)

Commission Expires: vS|2)l | ^0^4

'-v 1

'Vv

Rev. 09/23/19



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDrmY)

07/24/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOucen

ShofT Darby Companies

100 Technology Drive

Suite 200

Trumbull CT 06611

NAMfc^^ Patrida McFarland
SK™. (203)"""'' (203)268-0687

AMRESS- mcfariandp^lshoiTdarby.com
INSURERtSI APFOROINQ COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Lioyds of London

INSURED

"Cbbrdinated Transportation Solutions' iric."

35 Nutmeg Drive

Suite 120

Trumbull CT 06811

INSURER B UtJca Mutual Insurance Corr^ny 25976

INSURER C' Travelera'C'asualty & Surety

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER P

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIPr THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VWICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR 1  TYPE OF INSURANCE r.i«:»iav.iis!;

IKMirS? POUCY NUMBER UMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL QENERAL UABIUTY

« 1 X] OCCUR

W1C290190401 07/24/2019 07/24/2020

EACH (XCURRENCE
, 8,000.000

CLAIMS-MAC
□AMAUi: TO KLNTbO
PREMISES lEa occuneoeal

, 50,000
MED EXP (Any ona nraon) , 5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY ,  Induded
OEKLAOOREGATE UMITAPPUBS PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE , 6,000,000

X POUCY 1 1 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • CXXP/OPAGO , Induded
s

A

1 AUTOMOBILE UABiUTY

W1C290190401 07/24/2019 07/24/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
rFa aedrMntt S 1,000,000

ANYAUTO

;heouled
ITOS
WOWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par paraon] %

OVWEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AL BODILY INJURY (Par acddani) t

X X NC
AL

I^OPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddsntt t

s

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMSMADE
1

EACH OCCURRENCE 1

AGGRE(3ATE

DEO 1 1 RETENTION S 1 s

6

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABiUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER«X£CUnvE |—1
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandat^ In NH) ' '
If vaa. daaoSM un^
OESCRIPTI{>r OF OPERATIONS bdlow

N/A 4777747 07/24/2019 07/24/2020

w PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER
E.L EACH ACCIDENT , 1,000,000
E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE , 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POUCY UMIT , 1.000.000

A
Errors & Omissions-Claims Made

W1C290190401 07/24/2019 07/24/2020

S3,000,000/S3,000.000

$10,000 retention

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schodula, may b« atUehad If mora ipaca la raquIrM)

D&O/EPLI 7/24/16-8/24/19 Travelers Casualty & Surety Pol #106956960 Claims Made SI.OOO.OOO/SI.OOO.OOO Retention $15,000 Retro Date 4/21/01.
Sexual/Physical Misconduct ind in E&0-$1.000.000/S3.000,000-$10,000 retention, Claims Made. Retro Date 6/8/11. E&O retro date 7/25/01
SI.OOO.OOO/SI.OOO.OOO & 3/12/12 S2.000.000/S3.000.000 & 7/24/16 S3.000.000/S3.000.000. Cyber Liability Policy #MPL401527519. 6/1/19*6/1/20.
Underwiters at Uoyds. $5,000,000. S25.000 ded. Cyber Uability Policy #071529356001.6/1/19-6/1/20, Hiscox insurance. $5,000,000, S2S.000 ded

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
G 1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mission of CTS

to increase the availability of cost effective and efficient
transportation services

to transportation disadvantaged individuals and
communities
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GARVEY, STEELE COMPANY. LLP
Certified Public Accountants & Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
Trumbull, Connecticut

Report on (loancial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coordinated Transportation Solutions,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of September
30, 2018 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the fmanciai statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufricient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the fmanciai statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. as of September 30,2018 and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMB6(?S." American Institute of Certified Public Accountants/Connecticut Society of Certified Public Accountants
An Independently owned Member of Firm Foundation



Other matter

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The
schedule of functional expenses is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting end other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion the Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Mystic, Connecticut
ianuary 14,2019



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2018

ASSETS

Current BCTCta

Cash

Cash - restricted

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfiil accounts of $11,714
Prepaid expenses

Total cunent assets

ProDcrtv and eaaipment

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Software

Equipment under capital lease

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment

Other assets

Restricted cash - deferred compensation
Deposits

Total other assets

Total assets

1,737,005

59,303

7,311,921
105,123

215,366

878,260

200,201
545,817

46.733

1,886,377

(964,779)

19,578

6,158

$  9,213,352

921,598

25,736

$  10.160.686

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30.2018

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current llabilUlCT

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Line of cr^it payable
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Long-temi debt, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net assets

$  2.763,680
1,700,000

409.454

437.727

$  4,873,134

437.727

5.310.861

4.849.825

$  10,160,686

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMEOT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2018

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Transportation brokerage
Grant income

Miscellaneous income

Investment income

Total revenue

Expanses

Program
General and administrative

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Unrestricted net assets - October 1,2017

Unrestriaed net assets - September 30,2018

S  59,463,647
56,124

47,500

11.498

59,578.769

58,380,592

1,221,893

59,602,485

(23,716)

4,873.541

S  4.849.825

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTlVfTlES

Change in net assets

Amounts to reconcile change in net
assets to net cash used in operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt expense
, Change in cash -restricted
Change in accounts receivable, net

Change in prepaid expenses
Change in loan origination fees
Change in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings on capital lease from prior year equipment purchase
Repayments on capital lease payable
Repayments on long-term debt
Borrowings on line of credit
Repayments on line of credit

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning balance

Cash, ending balance

(23.716)

325,353

2,991

700

(1,614,263)

37,157

4,165

317.619

(949.994)

256,281

(286,892)

(11.311)
16,300,000

(14,600,000)

1,658,078

708,084

1.028,921

1,737,005

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Amounts paid during the year for;
Interest S 70,850

Other non-cash financing transactions:

Acquisition of property and equipment via capital lease
Borrowings on capital lease facility

606,878

(606,878)

See accompanying notes to fiitancial statements

4



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2018

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Oreanizatiori

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. ("the Organization") was organized as a Connecticut not-fot'
profit corporation in September 1997. The Organization was formed to enhance the mobility of
transportation for disadvantaged individuals and communities by offering a package of services designed to
promote coordination of service and partnerships between Government, not-for-profit agencies and for-
profit companies. The majority of the Organization's revenue was generated in New Hampshire and
Massachusetts.

Basis of accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

Basis of presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, Not-for-Profit Entities, Presentation of
Financial Statements, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrekricted net assets, temporarily restrict^ net assets
and permanently restricted net assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Punuant to an analysis of open receivables at September 30, 2018 the Organization has established an
allowance for doubtfiil accounts totaling $ 11,714.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Expense allocation

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the Statement of Activities and In the Schedule of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income tax status

The Organization is exempt from federal Income taxes pursuant to Section 501 (cX3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under
Section 170 (b)(1)(A) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation under
Section 509(aX2). The Slate of Connecticut also recognizes the Organization's tax-exempt status, and
therefore, there is no provision for Income taxes in these financial statements.



NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNtiNG POLICIES fContinuedV

Property and eouiDtnent

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the underlying asset. Those lives range from five to seven years.

intangible assets

Intangible assets include organization costs, loan origination fees and software development costs. The
costs related to these items have been capitalized and are being amortized over the'estimated useful lives of
the underlying intangible assets, which range from three to five years.

Advertising

The Organization uses advertising to promote its programs among the audience it serves. The cost of
advertising is expensed as incurred. During the year ended September 30, 2018 the Organization incurred
$106,503 of advertising costs.

Subsequent events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 14, 2019, the date the fuiancial statements
were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - REVOLVING LTNE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $1,700,000 revolving line of credit available with a large commercial bonk. Bank
advances on the credit line are payable on demand and carry a variable interest rate, 4.00% at September
30,2018. There was $ 1,700,000 outstanding on the revolving line of credit at September 30,2018. .

NOTE 3-COMMITMENTS

The Organization entered Into an operating lease for office space in Trumbull, Connecticut during August
2015. At April 1,2017, the Organization increased the square footage being leased by approximately 3,100
square feet The amended lease calls for monthly base rent payments that Increase at certain intervals
during the lease term, which term expires in August 2026. In addition to the base rent payments, the
Organization is responsible for their proportionate share of the common alloceble expenses of operating the
facility. The lease contains two options to extend the tease after the August 2026 expiration date. Each
option is for five additional years.

On April 29, 2016, the Organization entered into an operating lease for office space in Concord, New
Hampshire commencing May 1,2016. The lease begins with a period of non-occupancy from May 1, 2016
until December 31, 2016, during which the Organization made uniform monthly payments of $2,000.
During the non-occupancy period, the Organization had the option to elect to Iwgin a three-year lease
commencing January 1, 2017 or 90 days after the election has been made, whichever was later. The
Organization entered Into a three-year lease agreement effective March 1,2017, with said lease expiring at
the end of February 2020.



NOTE 3 - COMMITMENTS fContinued>

Amount charged to rent expense for the year ended September 30,2018 totaled $182,137.

Future minimum lease payments as of September 30,2018 are:

Year ending September 30,2019 $
2020

202!

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total future minimum lease payments S

NOTE 4 - nNANClAL INSTRUMENTS

213,330
175,903
162,510
163,864
178,761
553:888

1,448.257

Financial Instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentration of credit risk consist
principally of cash and accounts receivable. The Organization's cash balances are insured by the Federal
Depositary Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 (except for transaction accounts that are fully insured).
The Organization's concentration of credit risk with respect to the accounts receivable is limited due to the
large number of customers and their dispersion across geographic areas. At September 30, 2018 the
Organization had approximately $1,710,202 of cash in excess of insurance coverage on deposits.

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30,2018, long-term debt consisted of the following:

$586,497 Equipment capital lease note payable to a large
commercial bank. The note is payable in monthly
instaUments of $17,452, including interest at 4.52%,

maturing in Febmary 2020. $

$66,878 Equipment capital lease note payable to a large
commercial bank. The note is payable in monthly

installments of$l8,[39, including interest at 4.82%,

maturing in March 2021.

$250,000 Small Business E^^ress Program loan
&om Connecticut Department of Economic and

Community Development. The note is payable in

monthly installments ofSl,034, including interest \

at 2.0%, maturing in October 2022. 48,608

286,861

511,712

Total long-term debt 847,181

Less amount reported as short-term (409.454)

Amount reported as long-term $ 437,727



NOTE 5-LONG-TERM DEBTfConlinued^

Future minimum payments under this note are as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2019 $ 409,454

2020 305,111

2021 119330

2022 12353

2023 and thereafter 1,033

$  647.181

The equipment notes are collateralized by the equipment purchased by the notes.

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization authorized a deferred compensation program pursuant to section 457 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Under the plan, select employees are able to contribute a portion of their compensation to
the plan. There were no contributions to the plan during the year ended September 30, 2018. Amounts
held in the account are restricted for future benefit payments, but are subject to creditor risk. At September
30,2018 there was $19,578 in the account.

The Organization also established a retirement plan in accordance with section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Alt employees are eligible to participate in elective salary deferrals upon becoming
employed However, employees must be of a minimum age of twenty-one and must complete one year of
service to be eligible to receive Company matching contributions. The Organization made S43,873 in
matching contributions during the year ended September 30,2018.

NOTE 7 - CONCENTRATIONS

Approximately 62% of the Organization's total revenue was related to two (2) contracts.

NOTE 8 - CASH -RESTRICTED

At September 30, 2018, the Organization had S59,303 in restricted cash. The cash is restricted to fund
future unemployment claims, as the Organization is self-funding their unemployment liabilities instead of
paying into the State Unemployment Fund.

NOTE 9 - ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Organization has adopted the provisions of FASB, Accounting Standards Codification 740 • Income
Taxes. ASC 740 requires that a tax position be recognized or derecognized based on a 'more-likely-than-
not' threshold. This applies to positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Organization
does not believe its financial statements include, or reflect, any uncertain tax positions. Tax years from
September 30. 2015 through the current year remain open for examination by the Federal and state tax
authorities.



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2018

Program

General

and

Administrative

Total

Expenses

Purchased transportation $ 51,300,803 S  $ 51,300,803
Salaries and wages 4,244,385 749,009 4,993394
Payroll taxes 315,707 55,713 371,420
Employee benefits 364,611 64.343 428,954

Depreciation and amortization 276,550 48,803 325.353
Professioital fees 166,033 29,300 195333
Occupancy 295,888 52,216 348,104
Telephone and internet 249,425 44,016 293,441
Computer cortsultants 60,880 10,744 71,624
Temporary help 5,002 - 5,002
Office supplies and expense 55.828 9,852 65,680
Advertising and marketing 90,528 15,975 106,503
Irtsurance 73,182 12,915 86,097
Travel and entertainment 91,753 16,192 107,945
Postage 14,276 2,519 16,795
Repairs and maintenance 336.983 59,468 396,450
Dues and subscriptions 23,197 4,094 27390
Donations and gifts 7,046 1,243 8389
Equipment rental 34,772 6,136 40,908
Property taxes 13,259 2.340 15,599
Payroll service 13,079 2,308 15,387
Conferences and meetings 40,215 . 40315
Printing 9,517 1,680 11,197
Interest expense 70,850 . 70,850
Interpreter services 39,663 . 39,663
Training and professional development 156,346 27,590 183.936
Bad Debt Expense 2,542 449 2,991
Bank charges 28,273 4.989 33362

Total $ 58.380i592 S  1,221,893 S 59,602,485



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (2019-2020)

David L. White, President & Chairperson

Diane Pivirotto, Vice Chairperson
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David L White
President and CEO

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATiON SOLUTIONS. INC.

Founder, President and CEO 1997-Present

Founded CIS in September 1997 as a not-for-profit corporation to enhance coordination of transit
services for transportation disadvantaged individuals and communities. CTS currently employs
over 200 Individuals at its headquarters in CT and a satellite call center in Concord, NH. Efforts
have been focused on Medicaid, Medicare, Veterans Administration, health care facility and
Special Education transportation management services. Clients include some of the largest
Managed Care Companies in the United States. CTS manages a network of over 400 transportation
providers throughout the northeastern United States providing over 2,000,000 Medicaid non-

emergency medical and social trips as well as 1,000s of Special Education trips each year.

CTS has been chosen by the Community Transportation Association of America (CTAA) as a model
for innovative approaches to Medicaid non-emergency transportation solutions.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

• Human Service Transportation Consortium, Executive Director 1994-1997

• Housatonic Area Regional Transit District, Director of Operations 1991-1994

• Housatonic Area Regional Transit District, Director of Special Projects 1990-1991
• New York City Transit Authority, Manager, Capital Projects Division 1989-1990

• Norwalk Transit District, Deputy Administrator 1985-1989

• Milford Transit District, Executive Director 1980-1985

• United States Department of Transportation, Management Intern 1977-1979

EDUCATION

• M.P.A. Urban Affairs - The American University

•  B.A. Political Science - Washington and Jefferson College
• Certified Community Transit Manager {CCTM)-CTAA

MEMBERSHIPS
•  Community Transportation Association of America

•  Board of Directors 1996-present
•  Vice President of the Board 2000-2002

•  President of the Board 2002-2004

•  Connecticut Association of Community Transportation- Exec. Committee 1996-2004

•  Northeast Passenger Transportation Association 1998-present
•  National Medical Transportation Committee - CTAA 1999 - present



Jana Hunkler, M Ed, CCTM

Professional

Experience Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Trumbull, CT 2016-Present

Vi^ President of Business Development
Lead the leads the core Medicaid/Medicare non-emergency transportation Business Development
efforts In multiple states, Public Relations and Marketing Initiatives of CIS. Oversee Office of
Specialized Transportation department; Develop and Implement public relations strategy for
organization, as well as manage and maintain company website and social media presence;
Collaborate with President to Identify customers in new areas and implement cohesive marketing
plan to reach potential leads; Drive the business development and growth plans In alignment with
our strategic plans for GTS. Serves of member of the Executive Leadership Team.

Director ofBusiness Development
Senior management position reporting directly to the President. Oversee business development
team; Lead core Medicaid/Medicare non-emergency transportation business development and
growth of Specialized Transportation services In multiple states; Develop and lead marketing and
public relations activities; Assist with organizational strategic planning; Address policy Issues with
senior leadership team.

Proposal Writer
Develop proposals and presentations from conception to production and delivery; Including
research, communication with various business areas and levels of management and outside
vendors; assist in Business Development and Marketing Initiatives.

Berkshire Community Action Council, Pittsfieid, MA 2015-2016
Director of Transportation
Management of daily operations of BCAC transportation and the BerkshireRides community and
employment transportation project including: Service Design and Implementation; Community
Outreach; Budget Monitoring; Identifying and Writing for Funding; Creating Data Collection and
Analysis Systems; Preparation and Delivery of Reports to Elected Officials, Funders, BerkshireRides
Board of Directors, and Community; Insuring Compliance with ADA and other State and Federal
Transportation Standards; Transportation Related Education and Presentations; Staff Oversight;
Participation in Agency Wide Initiatives and Management Team Meetings

Community Transportation Assoc., Washington, O.C. & North Adams, MA 2004-2015
Project Manager; BerkshireRides, Inc.
Oversight and management of a 501(C)(3) community transportation organization with a $1.4M
budget, located in North Adams, Massachusetts, including: Community Outreach; Budgeting;
Marketing; Contracting; Program Review; Procedure Development and Implementation; ADA Policy;
Grant Writing; Training; Technical Assistance

National Transit Institute, Rutgers University, New Brunswick, N3 2008-2013
Faculty, Managing Community Mobility
Lead national training seminars in mobility management for transportation and human services
professionals and advocates. Keep course material current.

Town of Florida, Florida, MA 2000-2004
Town Administrator

Working under the direction of the Select Board to oversee and support all town departments and
boards; Represent town and Select Board on county and state-wide committees; File reports with
state departments; Liaison to Town Counsel

Williams College, Wiliiamstown, MA 1991-2000
Budget & Finance Director, Department ofPE., Athletics & Recreation
Develop and reconcile departmental budget; Purchasing; Oversee payment of all invoices; Coordinate
post-season tournaments and represent college at both home and away tournament events

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Assistant Business Manager, Department of Athletics & Recreation

1986-1991



Collect, balance and report on all department receivables; Develop cash handling policies; Liaison to
Internal and external audit teams; Calculate and submit payroll documents for all part time
employees; Schedule facilities for outside group use; Provide technical computer support for coaching
staff; Recruit, train and supervise student employees.

Key Presentations

Event Location Presentation

CTAA EXPO

2007

2009

2010

2011

Reno, NV

New Orleans, LA

Long Beach, CA

Indianapolis, IN

•  Understanding and Responding to Youth
Transportation Needs

• The Role of Traditional Communications In

Transit

• Mobility Management: Practical Implications for
Transportation Providers

• The Role of Transit Board Members in System
Success

New York Assn of

Training & Employment
Professionals, 2008

Syracuse, NY •  Understanding and Responding to Youth
Employment Transportation Needs

Job Access Mobility
Institute. 2012

Washington, D.C • CTAA Faculty

Transportation
Solutions Coordinator,
2013

Institute for

Transportation
Coordination

2009

2011

6 sites in

Michigan

Dedham, MA
Des Moines, lA

• Training designed and delivered for TANF,

Workforce, and Transit audience

• Mobility Management on a System Level
• Regional Approaches to Coordination
• An Overview of Regional Mobility Management

Connecting Individuals to Transoortatlon Services

National TRB Rural and

Intercity Bus
Conference, 2010

Burlington, VT • Commuter Programs that Increase Uvabllity
in Rural Communities

MA Department of

Developmental
Services Employment
Forum. 2011

Worcester, MA • Transportation for Employment: Options and
• Solutions

Alliance for Full

Participation Summit,
2011

Washington, DC • Transportation Challenges: Getting People to
Work

MA Association of

People Supporting
Employment First
fAPSET 2012

Worcester, MA • Getting to Work: Finding Transportation

Annual Transportation
Forum. 2012

Cedar Rapids, lA • Keynote: You Can Get There From Here

Movlnq Together 2014 Boston. MA • Mobility Management at Work in the Berkshires
WEBINAR, 2008 CTAA • Understanding and Responding to Youth

Transoortatlon Needs

WEBINAR, 2011 CTAA • Making Performance Measures Work for You

WEBINAR. 2017 CrS/ACAP • TNCslnNEMT



Education

Community
Service

Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts
Master ofEducation, Supervision Concentration

University of New Hampshire
Bacheior of Arts, Anthropology

Elected & Appointed Offices, Town of Florida, MA
Town Auditor, Gabriel Abbott Memorial School Committee, McCann Technical School
Committee, Assessor, Council on Aging, Yankee Rowe Decommissioning Community
Advisory Board

Other Volunteer and Committee Involvement

• Gubernatorial Appointment to the Massachusetts Statewide Council on Coordination and
Community Transportation

• MPO-Transportation Advisory Committee and Nominating Committee, Berkshire Regional
Planning Commission
Northern Berkshire United Way Board Vice President for Community and Special Grants
Berkshire Transitional Assistance Advisory Board Member
Federation for Children with Special Needs Parent Educational Advocate
Parent Liaison, Early Intervention of Northern Berkshire
Patient Partner and Marathon Team, Children's Hospital Trust
CARE Campaign, North Adams Regional Hospital
EcuHealth Care Board of Directors

School Governance Council Abbott Memorial School and McCann Technical School
Berkshire Chamber of Commerce Leadership Program Graduate 2007
Member of Berkshire Chamber of Commerce

Member of Williamstown Chamber of Commerce

Founding Memt>er of S.T.A.R [Stand Together Act Responsibly]
Treasurer of Small Town Administrator's Association

Congressman Olver's Northern Tier Economic Development Project and EcoTourism
Subcommittee member

Sweatshop Labor Committee, Williams College
President's Grievance Council, Williams College
Williams College Employee Credit Union Board of Directors
Frog Lotus Yoga Reception Volunteer
Notary Public



Robin Lynch

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.
Chief of Service Delivery 2019-Present
Oversee the operations to meet business goals and projections. Collaborate closely
with the Chief Executive Officer. Empower the operational team with the leadership and
resources they need to successfully complete operations initiatives. Partner with other
C-level executives to accomplish short and long-term operational goals. Measure and
report on operational performance and develop plans to improve relevant key
performance.
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
• Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Senior Director Provider Relations 2017-2019

• Coordinated Transportation Solutions Inc., Director of Provider Relations 2017-2018
• Coordinated Transportation Solutions Inc., Manager of Provider Relations 2015-2017
• Personal Health Care Provider/Caregiver 2011-2014
• HealthNet of the Northeast, Senior Manager 2004-2011
• Warnaco, Senior Buyer 1993-2003

EDUCATION
• Sacred Heart University, Fairfield CT - Business Administration



Edward E. Platt, Jr.
Chief Compliance Officer

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.

Chief Compliance Officer 2019-Present

Responsible for all aspects of the organization's Compliance Program. This includes all aspects of
Medlcald, Special Education and Worker's Compensation brokerage operations and Is our clients'

first point of contact for major contracts. Ed also, oversees our Quality Assurance Department,
Project Management Office, and all new client Implementations. Develops departmental short

and long-term goals and ensi^res that Departmental performance Is In compliance with project
requirements. Documents, researches, and follows up on Incidents and customer complaints and
is responsible for operational contract compliance Issues. Interfaces with the Operations,

Finance, IT and back office admin Departments regarding budget, personnel issues, performance
standards and IT system Issues and works with Business Development staff to promote the
growth of the organization. Alternate contact In the absence of the President In accordance with

our succession plan.

Vice President of Operations 2016-2018

Director of Operations 2014-2016

Director of Compliance 2013-2014

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

•  ICES, Inc., Director of Shared Services 2018-2019

•  Am WINS Rx, Operations General Manager 2012-2013

•  Health Net Inc. 2001-2011

•  Contact Center Director (2006-2011)

•  Operations Manager (2003-2006)

•  Sr. Financial Analyst (2001-2003)

•  Scheduling and Forecasting Coordinator (2000-2001)

EDUCATION
•  US Navy Electronics School

•  Sacred Heart University

•  Villanova University

•  Six Sigma Green Belt Certification Course



Jpffrpv Mpthpn;) PIS^P merging proven information/cyber security experience withjc;illt:;y IVIdUICIId, Uioor ... business ACUMEN TO DEUVER SECURE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

INFORMATION & CYBER SECURITY EXECUTIVE/LEADER/ENGINEER who has been crushing goals, building
amazing information and cyber security teams, leading by doing, stepping out of my comfort zone, finding creative solutions to
complex problems, delivering cutting edge solutions, capitalizing on opportunities, building productive partnerships between
the security, technology and business teams, working over vendors to get more for less, squeezing savings out of tight budgets,
implementing secure/scalable private and public cloud infrastructures and leaving a trail of success in my wake for 27 years.

A CAREER OF DELIVERING INNOVATION FOR OPERATIONAL GROWTH

Coordinated Transportation Solutions CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER 2017 - Present
Responsible for the management and development of CTS's technology infrastructure, Information Security, Telecommunications,
Vendor Management, and the delivery of Information Technology. Serves as a Liaison with all Medicaid programs under contract,
caseworkers, corporate customers and plan personnel regarding IT and Technology requirements.
•  Drive root-level resolution to reoccurring and highly impactful services issues and concerns.

•  Manages the development and maintenance of Information Security policies, procedures and compliance.

•  Identify new technology solutions and work closely with internal business partners to forecast future needs and develop cost
effective strategies aligned with business objectives.

•  Hire and supervise a staff consisting of IT professionals.

MassMutual/CyberSN CYBER INTELLIGENCE UNIT & GLOBAL SECURITY MONITORING DELIVERY LEAD 2017 - 2018
Serve as the delivery lead for the Global Security Monitoring projects that reside in a complex hybrid cloud environment.
•  Ensure execution is aligned with best practices and standards as defined by the Center of Excellence and solutions deployed

are secure as per Enterprise information Risk Management standards.

•  Accountable to drive delivery of quality solutions tied to clearly understood business requirements and goals.
•  Collaborate within and across ClO channels to identify delivery efficiencies, leverage resources, reduce costs, improve

support capabilities and ensure all teams are successful.

•  Gauge the cultural impact of changes and develop mitigating approaches with SOC leadership to overcome challenges.

Tyrion LLC CHIEF INFORMATION SECURITY OFFICER & CTO 2016 - 2017
Established the company's strategic and technical roadmap, ensuring the AWS cloud architecture/environment/development efforts
were secure by following strict InfoSec frameworks, drove the deliverables and product development of the team to meet the tight
timelines introduced by a fast-moving entrepreneurial environment.

•  Combined thought-leadership and practicality to balance operational effectiveness and security controls.
•  Designed, implemented, and maintained a secure, fault tolerant, highly scalable, sub-second latency cloud based live

streaming media solution, collaborating closely with the DevOps and iOS engineers to ensure optimal integration and
performance with strict information security controls.

•  Helped build a productive, cohesive, collaborative engineering team by recruiting talented resources, providing guidance,
fostering teamwork, promoting constant communication and leading by example.

TicketNetwork INFORMATION SECURITY OFFICER (ISO) & VP IT 2009 - 2016
Developed highly skilled InfoSec and IT teams that enabled rapid business growth through adoption of continuous improvement, agile
development methodologies, following OWASP secure development guidance, embracing innovation and continual collaboration with
the business. Leveraged and secured hybrid cloud (PaaS, laaS, SaaS) solutions that supported rapid business growth.

Designed, implemented and maintained an Information Security framework/program based on COBIT/NIST and a
Governance Risk & Compliance (GRC) program to maintain PCI Level 1 compliancy.

Developed, implemented and continually improved security architectures for the hybrid cloud environment that included the
end-to-end security for the in-house private cloud and public cloud {AWS & Azure}.
Planned and managed complete data center move between states no business interruptions or impact to release schedule.
Negotiating over SIM in one-time costs and $200K in annual hosting costs.
Scaled the eCommerce environment allowing the infrastructure to handle a 200% increase in traffic/sales volume.
Defined and managed the IT operating and capital budget of $4M and reduced operating costs by 7% over 2 years.

Lincoln Financial Group DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNICAL & APPLICATION SECURITY 2008 - 2009
Combined the Technical and Application Security teams into a single cohesive group that defined the security policies for the entire
company and reviewed all Application Development efforts to ensure there were no security risks or vulnerabilities.

Jeffrey Mathena Page 1



•  Implemented Application Security Reviews for internally developed software ensuring that security requirements (OWASP
Top 10) were met and all application vulnerabilities were eliminated/mitigated prior to release.

•  Defined and updated all policy/standards and the architecture of the security infrastructure including enterprise architecture,
web based (perimeter), remote access, network, server and desktop defenses/monitoring/alerting.

•  Oversaw the capital and expense budget of $3M and presented it to the CFO & CTG during annual planning.

SPX Precision Components DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2006 - 2008
Transformed a total outsourced IT structure to an internal self-sufficient team. Spearheaded the standardization and implementation
of a single ERP system between sites.

•  Built an internal IT Team resulting in improved issue resolution metrics and cost savings of over 15% annually.
•  Developed a detailed long term and short-term strategic IT roadmap and project plans for multiple locations, integrated

infrastructures, and telecommunications.

•  Led business process reengineering, including gathering/documenting requirements, workflows and developing
specifications for current processes and future processes (AS-IS & TO-BE).

Victorinox Swiss Army DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2002 - 2006
Managed entire ERP upgrade efforts from JO Edwards to SAP, a two-year effort that included defining RFP's, handling vendor reviews,
presenting to the parent company in Switzerland, and project management of the entire upgrade process.
•  Managed annual IT budget (expense and capital) of $3M and reduced costs by an average of 10% year-over-year.
•  Led transformation of application development team from supporting JDE (RP6) to SAP (ABAP).
•  Migrated from three separate PBX systems to a single unified, secure VoIP Cisco system.

Gorp.com CHIEFTECHNOLOGYOFFICER 2000 - 2002

Gobi, Inc. DIRECTOR, INFGRMATIQN SYSTEMS 1999 - 2000
Lincoln Rnancial Group SENIOR NETWORK ENGINEER 1995 - 1999
MassMutual/lntegrated Systems Resources IT NETWORK & SYSTEMS CONSULTANT 1993 - 1995
Aetna Life and Casualty SENIOR SYSTEMS ENGINEER 1990 - 1993
United States Marine Corps Reserve LANCE CORPORAL 1990 - 1994

DEDICATED TO CONTINUOUS EDUCATION

MS, Computer Information Systems (Concentration in Security) - Boston University
BS, Information Technology/Business Minor (Magna Cum Laude) - University of Massachusetts
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) - (ISC)^
Lean Executive certificate - University of Tennessee

Finance for the Technical Executive certificate - MIT Sloan School of Management
Chief Range Safety Officer (CRSO) - NRA

Certified Rifle Instructor - NRA

TECHNOLOGY AND INFOSEC LEADERSHIP SKILLS THAT BUILD VALUE AND DRIVE GROWTH

Technology Alignment and Strategic Planning • SDLC (Software Development Life Cycle) Improvement
Enterprise Budget Management o Agile

Internal Reporting, Metrics, KPI's, Analytics o Kanban
Project Life Cycle Management o Waterfall
Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery • Governance, Risk, and Compliance (GRC)
Vendor Relations and Management o PCI

Scalable IT Infrastructure Design and Support o HIPAA
Business Impact Analysis o Sarbanes-Oxley
eCommerce Solutions o Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Data Center Design and Management * Information Security Management Frameworks (COBIT,
Cross-functional Team Development, Leadership &
Mentoring • Information Security Policy Development
ERP Systems (SAP, JDE, Oracle) * Information Security Awareness and Training

Jeffrey Mathena Page 2



Jeffrey P. DiGirolamo

Profile

• An insurance and HealthCare industry professional with a proven track record
highlighted by 30+,years of finance, accounting, operational, management and
data analytics experience.

•  Strong focus on change management, productivity analytics/enhancement and
organizational optimization through effective talent management.

Work Experience

2019 -Present

Chief Financial Officer
Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (Non-emergency Medical Transportation
Broker) Notfor Profit
•  Responsible for Financial Reporting, Accounting, Compliance, Quality

Assurance, Contract Negotiations and Human Resources
•  $60M in Topline Revenue, SG&A $4M, Gross Margin $8M
•  Developed and implemented a financial remediation plan $1M in annual savings
•  Bank Negotiations for Capital Lease and Line of Credit
•  Restructured Operations to achieve productivity in Call Center (Financial

Remediation)
• Member of the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors

•  Restructured service contracts increasing margin by 10%
•  Renegotiated Vendor Contracts - savings of $400K

2018-2019

Prospect Medical Holdings, Inc. (ECHN- CT, CharterCare - RI, Alliance Medical
Group-CT, CROZER- PA, NIX-TX)
Healthcare and Financial Data Analytics: Prospect Physician Enterprise - Decision
Support

•  Physician profitability analytics - Developed and built productivity analytics for
700+ providers within the Prospect Enterprise

•  Key analytics and Practice scorecards which compare KPIs of owned physicians
to the MGMA benchmarks.

• Automated P&L from numerous GLs into one comprehensive source - facilitated
decision support initiatives across the enterprise.

•  Data provided to owners are the key business drivers in support of financial and
operational decisions.

Jeffrey P. DiGirolamo
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2016-2018

Travelers

Director, Financial Management
•  Financial head for eBusiness (Internally Developed Software - SOP98) and Bond
& Surety IT - $80M of IT spend (Internally Developed Software - SOP-98)

•  Implemented Vendor Management process
•  Divisional Financial Representative for the Digital Workforce (DW) space -

$45M of IT spend (End User peripherals)
• Advanced financial reporting to the DW organization and became a key member

of the DW management team
•  Assumed financial responsibility of the Business Intelligence & Analytical space -

$50M of IT spend (Software Contracts)
•  Redefined financial structure simplification which led to the ability to simplify

financial allocation back to the Line of Business (LOB)

2015-2016

Robert Half- Travelers
Financial Consultant - OAIsys
•  Divisional Financial Representative for the Digital Workforce (DW) space
• Advanced financial reporting to the organization and became a key member of the
DW management Team.

2013-2015

Access Health CT

Director, Financial Planning & Analysis
•  Developed the financial sustainability model
•  Developed and integrated the procurement and vendor management

organization within the planning process .
•  Lead in the effort to introduce NetSuites as the ERP for the organization.
•  Leveraged NetSuites CRM and BI capabilities
•  Negotiated contract terminations with underperforming vendors



Jeffrey P. DiGirolamo

2012-2013

Chief of Staff, Prudential Annuities IT

•  Champion the development and execution of AIT's Value Proposition
•  Developed and executed management style exercises across the AIT

enterprise
•  Partnered on the architecture of the AIT Leadership Promise; TECH; Trust,

Empower, Coach, Honor
•  Completed "Exploring Group Dynamics" through Sole & Associates

2007-2011

United HealthCarc Operations - Director of Financial Planning & Analysis
Interim CFO of Benefit Operations:
Manage cost for an operating department of 26,000 employees and $2.4B of expense,

o Reorganized and managed multi-tier professional staff
■  Business Planning Strategy
■  Cost Allocation

■  Financial Planning and Forecasting
■  Planning Tools
■  Customer Facing Support
■  International Accounting Operations - Ireland based

o Establishes cost allocation methodology for customer facing constituents
purchasing operational support

o  Interface with Segments on Operating Cost
o Drive Business Plan and Forecast Cycles
o Build Strategic Partnerships with Operations, Finance, Shared Service and

customer facing segments (Commercial, Medicaid, Medicare)
o Directs Corporate Finance Functions of International Subsidiary/Hub
o Directs strategy, design and implementation of planning tools
o Trained in Culture transformation through Senn Delahney

FP&A Director: Oversees Planning Infrastructure Development, Membership
Reporting, SGt&A Target Development, Inter/Intra Segment Allocations - $1.2B,
20,000 FTEs

2006- 2007

WellPoint, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield, Director of Finance
•  Finance Head for Operations Technologies and eBusiness - $400 + million of

SG&A technology spend.
o Directs Business Planning and Forecasting Cycles
o Helps drive system migration strategies and associated CBAs
o Cost allocation to constituent based purchasing segments



Jeffrey P, DiGirolamo

2002-2006

Aetna, Business Unit Finance Director - Regional Business
•  Overall responsibility for planning, forecasting and financial support - Revenue of

$2 billion, Medical Cost $1.6 billion, 720,000 members and $700 million of
expense management.

2000-2002

CIGNA, AVP, Service Operation
Business Unit Support Controller.

•  SAS 70 coordination of corrective action response for the annual audit findings for
Service Operations - $800 million of operating expenses.

•  Directed membership reporting for health segment - 10 million member base

Director of Service Operations.
•  Controller/Capacity Planning - National Call Service Centers - Annual budget of

$100 million

1997-2000

WellPoint Heath Networks - Unicare

Finance Director

•  Director of Large Group Financial Operations - Overall responsibility for premium
billing, collections, internal/external compensation administration, overpayment
recovery/claim subrogation activities and alternate funding administration for ASC
business - Managed staff of 70+

o  Improved all unit operating performance metrics through reengineering
efforts

o Managed vendor relationships. Maximized Business Unit earnings through
overpayment recoveries - $32+ million

1996-1997

Mass Mutual, Finance Director of Planning
-  Planning and forecasting for Asset Accumulation business.

1982-1996

Aetna Life & Casualty
Finance Manager and Business Unit Controller

Controller for Axia Services - TPA for Workers Compensation and General
Liability.
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Community Involvement

Non-profit youth organization which offers civic, religious and charitable
opportunities to high school parishioners of the St. Augustine and St. Paul of
Glastonbury

o Organize annual Mission Trip
o Responsible for fundraising
o Youth Ministry
o Community outreach
o Recipient of the 2014 FOGY Award (Friends of Glastonbury Youth)

Group Publishing, Group Mission Trips
o Home Repair Site Coach and Youth Ministry

■  1 week volunteer every summer at locations across the country
4''' Degree - Knights of Columbus - Glastonbury Council

o Formed an alliance between the Glastonbury Youth Group and the K of C
o Volunteer for Tootsie Roll Drive, Food Concessions at UCONN Football

Games

Education

B.S., Management, 1986
Central Connecticut State University



Carol lacopino

Professional Profile

Consolidated Transportation Solutions CTS Current
Account Manager

Responsible for Account Management of Medlcaid Health plans in NH
Community outreach, expanding and strengthening relationships with medical providers,
shelters, clinics, treatment facilities and human service agencies
Point of contact for problem resolution

Well Sense Health Plan 2015-2019

Director of Operations/Program Performance

Well Sense Health Plan program performance oversight including contractual and regulatory
compliance

Troubleshoot all program concerns to achieve optimal performance, utilizing key performance
indicators, member and provider feedback
Initiate continuous improvement of program process and staff development
Represent WSHP externally as necessary with and as a backup to the Executive Director
Responsible for Member Advisory Board and Regional meetings
Operational Lead on all file exchanges and implementations with the NH Department of Health
and Human Services

New Hampshire Department of Health andHuman Services 2014 -2015

Administrator Client Services

Official representative for the Division of Client Services in communications with the legislature,
provider organizations, hospitals, and other internal and external stakeholders to increase
collaboration, ensure access to services and resolve complex issues.
Direct daily operations of the Client Service Center for all DHHS programs, the Medicaid
transportation unit and the statewide document control unit
Manage the NH Medicaid enrollment center vendor contract

Supervise 75 staff members with overall responsibility for performance management
Lead on implementation of Managed Care communications forNH Step 2 Populations and the
New Hampshire Health Protection Program/Premium Assistance Program 2016

Meridian Health Plan New Hampshire
(Meridian exited NH the NH managed care market) 2012-2014

Director of Operations/ Grievance Coordinator

Responsible for the daily operations of Meridian Health PlanNH
Ensured compliance with all contractual obligations
Managed all contract reporting
Supervision of staff and liaison between all departments
Responsible for the MHP Grievance and Appeals process for NH Medicaid members
Implementation of strategic goals and business plan including financial planning
Oversight on communications, mailings to members and providers, member materials
Responsible for brand awareness and outreach to key constituent groups



ACS / A Xerox Company 2011-2012

Sr. Field Representative

• Responsible for enrolling and educating medical providers to successfully navigate the claims
process, eligibility determination, and business systems in the Medicaidenvironment.

• Creating and sustaining solid partnerships with health care providers, professional associations and
state agencies. {Ne-w Hampshire and Massachusetts provider hospitals).

• Technical assistance with emphasis on growth and development of the provider community that
serves Medicaid members.

New Hampshire Healthy Kids Corporation 1998-2010
Vice President ofProgram and Policy 2005 to 2010
• Managed 20 customer service representatives and 5 department supervisors. Responsible for all

aspects of customer service and daily operations for the State of New Hampshire's Children's Health
Insurance Programs, including engaging of external partners, application assistance, eligibility
screening and enrollment, outreach and data tracking.

■  Project management liaison on health insurance design and contract negotiation
■ Managed workflow for a variety of processes in a multi-faceted environment utilizing process
mapping to enhance overall operation.

•  Implemented State and HMO provider contract deliverables with full reportingrequirements
• Experience with health insurance benefit design, utilization and analysis.

■ Worked collaboratively with the Department of Health and Human Services and the Center for
Medicaid Services (CMS) and multiple business and human service organizations to secure
comprehensive customer service for families and providers.

• Developed statewide outreach training program and electronic manual for 42 designated agencies
(hospitals and community health centers) providing application assistance for uninsured families.
Created customized in reach and outreach programs for human service, school and health care
agencies.

• Hosted statewide trainings and presentations several times per year for over 100 participants,
primarily representatives from hospitals and health care provider sites.

• Created tracking system for quality assurance purposes to enhance the training of community
partners.

• Liaison for National Grant Project under Robert Wood Johnson for pilot sites in New Hampshire
1999 to 2006, 2008.

■  Participated on a National level with other SCHIP (State Children's Health insurance Programs) in
presenting and researching best practices.

• Responsible for hiring, employee retention and yearly review process for staff

Community Relations Director (NHHK) 1998 - 2005
• Developed the organization's strategic plan for education and technical assistance in the field
•  Implemented Presumptive Eligibility with pharmacy providers across the state
•  Supervised five Field Coordinators and all statewide outreach activities and technical assistance.

• Responsible for developing and nurturing community relationships through community partners
including schools, social service agencies, health care providers, childcare providers and others.

■ Worked closely with the state SCHIP Director and the Division of Family Assistance to monitor
policy and process issues concerning Medicaid and CHIP coverage.

• Co-chaired the workgroup responsible for developing a plan for the centralization of the application
process for 42 agencies designated as qualified entities. Developed a resource manual for eligibility
training for community partners.



Education/Career Related Studies

• Disabilities - P.D.D., ADHD, LD, University Of New Hampshire 1998
• Strength-Based Practice with Children and Families - Solution Oriented Approach, University of
New Hampshire Department of Social Work 1997

■ Associate of Science, Chemical Dependency, Summa cum laude Keene State College 1992
• 2018 CHIE Certified Health Insurance Executive- America's Health Insurance Plans (AHIP)

Leadership program



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

David White President and CEO $200,000 1.0 $2,000

Jana Hunkler Chief Customer Officer $105,000 I.O $1,050

Robin Lynch Chief of Service Delivery $110,000 1.0 $1,100

Ed Platt Chief Compliance Officer $132,000 1.0 $1,320

Jeff Mathena Chief information Officer $132,000 1.0 $1,320

Jeff DiGiroIamo Chief Financial Officer $1 10,000 1.0 $1,100

Carol lacopino DHHS Account Manager $80,000 10 $8,000
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JelTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Meory D. Upman
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAW SER VICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271.9422 1.800.852-3345 Ext. 9422

Fax; 603-271-8431 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

November 27, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Medicaid Services, to
exercise a renewal option to an existing sole source contract with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions. Inc. (Vendor# 271968). 35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611, to manage
the statewide non-emergency medical transportation for approximately 2,100 Medicaid
recipients remaining in the NH Medicaid Fee-for-Service (FFS) program, as approximately
56,650 of the 58,750 individuals, per monthly average, originally covered under this contract will
now receive services under Medicaid's Managed Care Organizations (MCO) beginning January
1, 2019, by increasing the price limitation by $257,292 from $12,980,446 to an amount not to
exceed $13,237,738, and extending the contract completion date from December 31, 2018 to
December 31, 2019, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The additional
funding for state fiscal year 2019 and 2020 is 56% Federal Funds, 43% General Funds, and 1%
Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 28,
2017 (Item #A). as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6).

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year
2019 and are anticipated to be available in 2020, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05.95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund (94% Federal I 6%

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $1,207,200 $0 .  $1,207,200

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $6,208,574 $0 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $3,032,370 $0 $3,032,370

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $0 " $0 $0

Subtotal $10,448,144 $0 $10,448,144



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-95-47-470010-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY. NH Granite Advantage Health Care Trust

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 SO

2010 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 so $19,297 $19,297

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 so $19,297 $19,297

Subtotal $0 $38,594 $38,594

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, Medicaid Care Management (50% Federal
/ 50% General)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $271,620 $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $1,510,247 $0 $1,510,247

I

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $750,435 $109,349 $659,7841

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $109,349 $10g,349|
Subtotal $2,532,302 S2f8,69S $2,75f,000

Contract

Total
$12,980,446 $257,292 $13,237,738

EXPLANATION

This request is to amend and existing sole source contract. The contract is sole source
because a previous amendment increased the total contract value by more than ten percent
(10%)! The purpose of this request is to ensure the approximately 2,100 Individuals who are in
the Medicaid FFS delivery system continue to have access to non-emergency transportation to
all Medicaid-covered services. State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary and
appropriate transportation, including the provision of non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair
van services, for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing facility to Medicaid-
covered services.

Outside this contract, individuals in the Medicaid Care Management Program currently
receive non-emergent medical transportation sen/ice through one of the two Medicaid managed
care organizations that administer benefits to most Medicaid members in New Hampshire.
However, New Hampshire Medicaid FFS is required to offer this service to those Medicaid
members who remain in the FFS delivery system because of their eligibility category.
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As of January 1. 2019. approximately 46,000 Medicaiij recipients in the NH Health
Protection Program's Premium Assistance Program Previously covered under the contract will
now be covered under the Granite Advantage Health Care Program through one of the State's
contracted MCOs. The use of same-day enrollment vyill allow for another 10.000 individuals in
the FFS program formerly covered by this contract to be covered by MCOs, leaving
approximately 2,100 individuals covered by this contract.

The non-federal share of costs for the Granite Advantage Health Care Program are
funded from a combination of revenues: Liquor tax revenue transferred from the alcohol abuse
prevention and treatment fund; the insurance premium tax; contributions from the State's
insurance high risk pool assessment and other funds as allowed by RSA 126:AA:3.

This Contractor was originally selected through a competitive bid process. As referenced
in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to
extend the contract for up to five (5) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council. The Department is exercising the option to renew the contract for one (1)
year, reserving their right to extend the term of the contract up to an additional four (4) years.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, New Hampshire
Medicaid recipients in the Fee-for-Service program may not have access to transportation to. or
home from, their non-emergent medical appointments covered by the Department of Health and
Human Services under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. In addition, the Department
would be in violation of federal requirements to assure transportation for Medicaid recipients to
Medicaid covered services.

Geographic area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: Funding for the entire contract is 84% Federal Funds (CFDA #93.778,
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services; Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Sen/ices.
Medical Assistance Program, Medicaid; Title XIX). 10% General Funds, and 6% Other Funds.

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Approved by:

en an

irect

'HA
rey Meyers

immtssioner

77te Department of Health and Human Scnnccs' Mission is to Join communities and fomilics
in providing opportunities forcitisons to achiovo health and indepondoncc.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-27M516 TDD Acceis: l-800'735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goutet

Commissioner

December 5, 2018

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Comm issioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. (Vendor# 271968) Trumbull, CT as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2017*
04IB.

The purpose of this request is to enter into contract renewal option for a sole source
contractamendmcntwith Coordinated Transportation, Inc. to continue to provide Medicaid
fee-for-service participants with access to non-emergency transportation to Medicaid
covered services.

The funding amount for this amendment is not to exceed 5257,292.00, increasing the
current contract from $12,980,446.00 to $13,237,738.00. This amendment shall become
effective January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services* submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

,Sincerely,

Denismis Goulet

DG/kaf/ck

DolT20l7-04iB

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This 2"^ Amendment to the Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2') dated this 6th day of November, 2018, Is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbuli,
CT, 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 28, 2017 (ITEM #A). and as amended (Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract and extend the contract completion date upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify -the scope of work, extend the term of the agreement, and
increase the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. Block 1.7, Completion Date to read:

December 31, 2019

2. Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read:

$13,237,738

3. Form P-37, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer or State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Section 1.5.1. in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety.

6. Delete Section 2.8. Contractor Call Center in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety, and
replace with:

2.8. Contractor Call Center. The Contractor shall operate a NH specific call center located In NH,
and In operation Monday through Friday, except for state approved holidays. The call center
shall be accessible through a statewide toll-free number. The call center shall be staffed with
courteous personnel who are knowledgeable about Medicaid FFS to answer member inquiries.

7. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment #1 in its entirety, and replace with
Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment #2.

Coordinated Trensporiaiion Solutions. Inc. Amendment 02
RFB-2017.0M8P-02.TRANS Page 1 Of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name:
Title: J

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

"'/lag! 1^
Date Name:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State ofO>^-ny.^-t^ County of on ' • J ^ . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above. " ?

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

l^hlc<^n If\- GrciSsman/}
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

sjhlj5LC><2^My Commission Expires:

Coordlnaled Transportation Solutions. Inc.' Amendmant #2
RFB*2017-OM8P-02-TRANS Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutlorts. inc.
RFB.2017-OMBP^2-TRAN$

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee For Service (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment #2

1. Capitation Rates, "per member / per month" amounts, for calendar year 2017,
calendar year 2018, and calendar year 2019 are as specified in Table 1.1 below:

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rate Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17

Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18

Year 3

1/1/19-12/31/19

Eligible
Members

PAP members 48.414
FFS members 11,392

PAP members 49,500
FFS members 12,250

PAP members 0

Fpis members 2,100

Per member

per month

rates

$10.06 $10.21 , $10.21

Annualize 9 12 12
Operations
Grand total

$5,414,636 $7,565,610 $257,292

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.
Exhibit 8-1 Amendment 02

RFB-2017.OM8P-02-Trans

Paoe 1 of 1
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STATE OF NEW HXiVlPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OFMEDICAID SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STRCCT. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9422 I.80O-0S2.3345 EiL 9422

Fa>: 603-271.8431 TDD Acceu: I-800-73S-2964

www.dhhj.nb.gov

January 30. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
amendment with Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. (Vendor # 271968), 35 Nutmeg Drive,
Suite 120, Trumbull. CT 06611. for the management of the non-emergency medical transportation
benefit offered to members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Premium Assistance Program and
Medicatd fee-for-service on a statewide level by Increasing the price limitation by $2,540,506 from
$10,439,940 to an amount not to exceed $12,980,446. with no change to the completion date of
December 31. 2018, effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23. 2017 (Item #A). The
additional funding Is 83% Federal Funds. 12% General Funds, and 5% Other Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2018
and 2019. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with
the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without
further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEOICAJD & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund (94% Federal f 6%
Other)

SFY
Ctass/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $1,207,200 $0 $1,207,200

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $4,864,800 $1,343,774 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $2,450,400 $581,970 $3,032,370

Subtotal $8,522,400 S1.925.744 $t0.448.f44

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POUCY, Medlcald Care Management (50%
Federal / 50% General)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class TItte

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 5271.620 $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 $1,094,580 $415,667 $1,510,247

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050^ $551,340 $199,095 $750,435

Subtotal $L9t7,540 $614,762 $2,5J2,J02

Contract Total $10,439,940 $2,540,506 $12,980,446



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunimu
And (he HorKnable Cour>cil

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase is greater than ten percent (10%) of the'total
contract value. More than ten thousand (10,000) participants are eligible for the service than previously
forecasted. The purpose of this request is to ensure individuals who are members of the New
Hampshire Health Protection Program's Premium Assistance Program and members in Medlcaid's
Fee-For-Service delivery system continue to have access to non«emergent transportation to all
Medicaid-covered services. State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary and
appropriate transportation, including medically-necessary, non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair
van services, for t)eneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursjng facility to Medicaid covered
services.

The New Hampshire Health Protection Program is the State authorized program to provide
health insurance coverage to low-income adults who are eligible for medical assistance under Section
1902 {a)(10)(A)(i)(VIII) of the Social Security Act. Through the second component of the New
Hampshire Health Protection Program, Known as the Premium Assistance Program, New Hampshire
uses Medicaid funds to purchase individual health insurance coverage for eligible adults in the form of
Qualified Health Plans. Qualified Health Plans are commercial individual health insurance products
certifted for sale on the New Hampshire Marketplace.

The Qualified Health Plans provide ten (10) essential health benefits that are required to be
provided to these Medicaid enrollees. However, the Qualified Health Plans do not provide several
other-services that Medicaid is required to provide to these Medicaid members. In addition to the
essential health benefits. Non-emergent medical transportation is one of those additional required
benefits not covered by the QHPs.

The majority of Medicaid members currently receive non-emergent medical transportation
service through one of the two Medicaid managed care organizations^that administer benefits to most
Medicaid members in New Hampshire. However, New Hampshire Medicaid Fee-for-Service is required
to offer this service to those Medicaid members who are newly enrolled and not yet in an MCO or who
remain in the fee-for-service delivery system because of their eligibility category.

This contractor was selected through a competitive bid process. As referenced in the Request for
Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to five (5)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Since New Hampshire law prohibits the use of general funds to support the New Hampshire
Health Protection Program, no general funds will be used to support the component of this program that
serves NHHPP members. However, ten percent (10%) of this contract cost will be funded with general
funds to support transportation services for Medicaid recipients in the traditional Medicaid fee-for-
service delivery system. Subsequently, the funding source for this entire contract will be 10% General /
84% Federal / S% Other funds. The "Other Funds" consist of voluntary contributions deposited into the
New Hampshire Health Protection Trust fund from the Foundation for Healthy Communities and any
other contributing charitat>le foundation as outlined in RSA 126-A;5-c and assessments collected by the
New Hampshire Health Plan, as outlined in RSA404-G:2 and RSA 404-G;5-a. IV(b) and (c).

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, thousands of New
Hampshire citizens may not have access to transportation to, of home from, their non-emergent
medical appointments covered by the Departrnent of Health and Human Services under the New
Hampshire Medicaid program. In addition, the Department would be in violation of federal
requirements to assure transportation for Medicaid recipients to Medicaid covered services.

Geographic area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: Funding for the entire contract is 84% Federal Funds (CFDA #93.778, U.S.
Department of Health & Human Sen/ices; Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Senrices, Medical
Assistance Program. Medicaid; Title XIX). 6% Other Funds, and 10% General Funds.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Coundl

Page 3 of 3

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no lortger available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by;

t
He . z.ipman

Dir or

teyers
commissioner

Tht Dtpartmcnl ofHealth and Human Seniccs'Mission is tojoin communities and fami/ioa
in providing opportunities for citizons to achiovo health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., CotKord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.rih.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

February 5, 2018

JcfTrcy A. Meyers
Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. of Trumbull, CT as described below and referenced as DolT No 2017-
(MIA.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for Coordinated Transportation Solutions,
Inc. to continue to provide individuals who are members of the New Hampshire
Health Protection Plan Premium Assistance Program access to non-emergent
transportation services. Access to non-emergent transportatiori services will help
ensure individuals are able to attend medical, mental health and other medically
necessary, but not emergent, appointments, including transportation to the pharmacy
to pick up necessary prescriptions. This contract will also provide transportation
services for the remaining Medicaid fec-for-scrvicc population.

The funding amount for this amendment is $2,540,506. increasing the current contract
from $10,439,940 to an amount not to exceed $12,980,446 effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval though December 31, 2018.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

cere

Denis Gou

DG/kaf

20I7-04IA

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager

Innovotive Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

State of New Hampshire
Department of Heatth and. Human Services

Amendment SI to the

Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This l" Amendment to the Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amemiment #1*) dated this 23rd day of January. 2016, Is by and between the Slate of
New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services (hereirafter referred to as the 'State' or
'Department') and Coordinated Transportation Soiutions. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the Contractor'), a
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120. Trumbull, CT. 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contracr) approved by the Governor and Executive CourKil on March
28. 2017, ITEM OA. the CorUractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditio<«
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Slate may modify the scope of wor1( and the
payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained In the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by S2.540.508 from $10,439,940 to read:
$12,960,448

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E. Maria Reinemann. Esq.. Director of Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.10 (oread 603-271-9330.

4. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet and replace with Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet -
Amendment #1.

5. Add Exhibit K. OHHS Information Security Requirements.

CoonXnttsd Transportation Solutions. Inc. Amenonaniat
RfB-201 r-OMSP-02-TRANS Page 1 <i 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FF$ Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their harujs as of the date written below.

j

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date' / Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

O
Date Name: "PXx/id U* (Oii

Title: Pf^sfde/Tf

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of County of Ffli T'fi glc( on the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
»gned above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public ufnJustice uf ttie Peaue ^ .

\ixihieefi (Y). (ifQss/nmii /^^tisfnrry
Name and Title of Notary or Juotioeef the Poooe

My Commission Expires: ^ KATHl£EHM. GRAB'
NOTARY PUBUC OF 00^»^ •

k.'. ;'..k.unission Explff.:. v.N'K??-

CoonSnated Trvisportttion Solutions. Inc. /^nendmentivi
RFa-2017-OM8P-O2-TRANS Po9e2of3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

Thd preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form. substar>ce. and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name

Tlt/e;

I hereby cenify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Gov^or and Executive CourKil of the State
Of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CoofOinstsd Transportation Solutions, inc.
RfS-20170MSP-02-TIUNS

AmanOmani 01

Paga3or3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
{NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee For Service (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B*1 Capitation Rate Sheet • Amendment #1

1. Capitation Rates, 'per member / per month* amounts, for calendar year 2017 and
calendar year 2018 are as specifted in Table 1.1 below;

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rate Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17

Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18

Eligible
Members

PAP members 48,414
FFS members 11,392

PAP members 49,500
FFS members 12,250

Per member

per month

rates

$10.06 $10.21

Annualize 9 12

Operations
Grand total

$5,414,836 $7,565,610

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.
ExhibKB-1

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-Tfans

Page 1 of1

Contractor Initials^^^) ̂

Oaie:l/e£^yS



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURmr REQUIREMENTS

1. ConfidenllaJ InformaUon: In addition to Paragraph <19 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
SOW. the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
Slate of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Oepartment of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed In the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI). Personally Identifiable Information (Pit). Federal Tax Information (FTl),
Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCI). and or other sensitive and confidential
Information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper secun'ty controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expectations include;

2.1. Contractor shall not store or transfer data collected in connection with the services rendered
under this Agreement outside of the United States. This includes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Oepartment confidential informat'ion throughout the
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (I.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Oepartment confidential information whereappiicable.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Oepartment confidential data stored on portable media, e.g.. laptops. USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption. .

2.5. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors'in
support of protecting Department ccnfidentialinformation

2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the

Oepartment within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidrntial information breach, computer security ir^ident. or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the

State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45. Codecf
Federal Regulatioru. 'Computer Security Incident' shaD have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incidenf in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Oepartment of Commerce.

Breach rK)lifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChieflnfofmationOfflcer@dhhs.nh.aov

2.7.1.2. DHHSInfofmationSecuritvOffice@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.8. If the verxlor will maintain any Confidential Information on 'its systems (or its sub-contractor systems),
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or

contract termination; and will obtain written certiflcallon for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed

0/2017 ExniUlK ConlrKlor InltitlsV
DHHS mformallon

Seeurfly Requi»wnents , ~ r- i .o
Papo 1 ol 2 Ooie ) ' D



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

by the vendor or any subcor^ctors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Slate of New Hampshire data shad be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document and certify In writing at lime of the data destruction, end will provide written certirication
to the Oepartment upon request. The written certiftcation will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory end
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and the vendor
prior to destruction.

2.9. if the vendor will be sub-contracting any core fur^ons of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, end monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor. Including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshireand
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor end eny appiiceble sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR t60.t03. the vendorwiil

work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the

Department end is responsible for maintaining compliance with theagreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to
enable the Department end vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabililles that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time

frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the DepartmeiM may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagemenl between the Department end the vertdor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowirrgiy or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from

the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member wilhin the Department.

6. Date Security Breach Liability. In the event of eny security breach Contractor shad make efforts to investigate
the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent future breech and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shell recover from the Contractor all costs of response and

recovery from the breech, including but r>ol limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs

associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.

6/2017 ExNUt K Contractor Iniiiais

OHHS information

SocufKy ROQurements
2 of 2 Date.
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STATCOFNEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN^SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SERVICES
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February 21, 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into an agreement with
Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (Vendor# 271968), 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120, Trumbull.
CT 06611, for the management of the non-emergency medical transportation benefit offered to
members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Premium Assistance Program and Medicaid fee-for-
sen/ice on a statewide level in an amount not to exceed $10,439,940 effective April 1. 2017 or upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval through December 31. 2018.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2017
and are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 and SFY 2019. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified. Funds are 9% General / 86% Federal / 5% Other funds.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID 8 BUS. POLICY. NHHPP Trust Fund
(94% Federal / 6% Other)

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity Code Total

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $1,207,200

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $4,864,800

2019 101-500729 Medical Foments to Providers 47004159 . ,  $2,450,400

1 Subtotal •''"^8.522.400

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES: HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID &.BUS. POLICY, Medicaid Care
Management (50% Federal / 50% General)

SPY Class/Account Class Title Activity Code Total

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 ■ $271,620

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 $1,094,580

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 $551,340

Subtotal $1,917,540

Contract Total $10,439,940
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EXPLANATION

Since New Hampshire law prohibits the use of general funds to support the New Hampshire
Health Protection Program (NHHPP), no general funds will be used to support the component of this
program that serves NHHPP members. However, nine percent (9%) ofii^s contract cost will be funded
with general funds to support transportation services for non-NHHPP members in the traditional
Medicaid fee-for-service deliveiv system. Subsequently, the funding source for this entire contract will
be 9% General / 86% Federal / 5% Other funds.

The 'Other Funds* consist of voluntary contributions deposited into the New Hampshire Health
Protection Trust fund from the Foundation for Healthy Communities and any other contributing
charitable foundation as outlined in RSA 126-A:5-C and assessments collected by the New Hampshire
Health Plan, as outlined in RSA 404-G;2 and RSA 404-G.5-a. IVfb) and (c).

The purpose of this request is to ensure individuals who are members of the NHHPP population
who are enrolled In the Premium Assistance Program and the standard Medicaid members in the Fee-
For-Service delivery system continue having access to non-emergent medical transportation services.
State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary transportation for beneficiaries to and from
Medicaid covered medical providers for Medicaid covered services.

The New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP) is the state authorized program to
provide health insurance coverage to low-income adults who are eligible for medical assistance under
Section 1902 (a)(10)(A)(i)(VIII) of the Social Security Act. Through the second component of NHHPP
krxjwn as the Premium Assistance Program, New Hampshire uses Medicaid funds to purchase
individual health insurance coverage for eligible adults in the form of Qualified Health Plans (QHPs).
Qualified Health Plans are commercial irtdividual health insurance products certified for sale on the
New Hampshire Marlcetplace.

The Qualified Health Plans provide 10 essential health benefits (EHBs) that are required to be
provided to these Medicaid enrollees. However, the Qualified Health Plans do not provide several
other services that Medicaid is required to provide to these Medicaid members In addition to the EHBs.
Non-emergent medical transportation (NEMT) is one of those additional required benefits not covered
by the QHPs.

The majority of Medicaid members currently receive NEMT service through one of the two
Medicaid managed care organizations that administers benefits to most Medicaid members in New
Hampshire. However. New Hampshire Medicaid is required to offer this service to those Medicaid
members who remain in the fee-for-service delivery system and are not served by the two Managed
Care Organizations as well as those in the Premium Assistance Program.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to five (5) additional year(s). contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

As a result of the foregoing. New Hampshire competitively bid the provision of non-emergency
transportation. The Department released a Request for Bid on July 25, 2016. Four (4) bids were
received and evaluated by a team of seasoned Department administrators. The bid sheet is attached.
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Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. obtained the highest score and was selected as the
ver>dor for these services. The vendor is familiar with the population being served and is best suited to
provide services to the NH population eligible for these services.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30,2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, thousands of NH citizens
will be impacted by not having access to transportation as a wraparound service covered by the
Department of Health and Human Services under (he NH Medicaid program. Without these
transportation services, individuals enrolled in the NH Health Protection Plan Premium Assistance
Program and Medicaid fee-for-service may not be able to get to. or home from, their non-emergent
medical and appointments. ^

Geographic area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 86% Federal Funds {CFDA #93.778, U.S. Department of Health & Human
Services; Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program. Medicaid: Title
XIX), 5% Other Funds, and 9% General Funds.

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respq^iiuHT^ubmltted.

J^orah H. Fournier. Esq.
Mpdicaid Director

Approved by: i "-- yW '
Jwey A Meyers
Commissioner

7hr !k'fi;iriiuvni o! Hi'iilth Hiiiunn Si'n'KV.^ ' i.< injinii lyiiitaiii/tirii-.' mi,/ f;uuilk'.
Ill f/im-itiinn n/itioriiinifii y ffu dliKii.- in in /iifv hrxhh .iiiri iiulftM-ii<ii'iii;'.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hezen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: W3-27M516 TOD Access: 1-800.735-2964

vvww.nh.gov/doit

Deois Goulct

Commiisiontr

1.^ February 23, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents format notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into an agreement with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions, Inc. as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2017'041.

The purpose of this contract is for Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. to
provide individuals who are members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
Premium Assistance Program access to non-emergent transportation services. Access
to non-emergent transportation services will help ensure individuals are able to attend
medical, mental health and other medically necessary, but not emergent,
appointments, including transportation to the pharmacy to pick up necessary
prescriptions. This contract will also provide transportation services for the remaining
Medicaid fee-for-service population.

The contract amount is not to exceed $10,439,940 effective April 1.2017 or upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through December 31,
2018.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goiilet

DG/ik

2017-041

cc; Bruce Smith, IT Manager

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health aitd Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

^  Summary Scoring Sheet

Transportation Management for New
Hampshire Health Protection Plan

(NHHPP) Premium Asdstance
Program (PAP) Participaits And Fee-

For-Service (PFS) Participants

RFP Name

RFB-2017'OMBP-02Trans

RFP Number

Bidder Name Maximu

m Points

Actual

Points

1.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. 1400 1282

2.

First Traroit, Inc. 1400 997

3.

LeFleur Transportation 1400 1157

4.

Medical Transportation Management, Inc. 1400 810

Reviewer Names

1. Mary Fields. Busirwss Systems Analyst I

2.
Apama Bhattarai. Program Planning &
Specialist

3. Heather Barto. Administrator III

4. Paul Casey. Business Administrator IV



.  . FORM NUMBER P-37(verT{QoS«lS)
TryPWn^tteB MnP«g€fTieBt for New H^moihire Heahh Prottcrioa Program rNHHPP) Premloin Ati>tt.net
Prptrim fPAP) iod Fce-For-Scrvkw fFFS> PTrielMnti fRPB-lOIT-OMBP-Oa-TRANS^

agreement

- The State of New Hampshire and the ConiractPf hereby mutually agree as follows:

NrtiCS' This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Eaecuiive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be cleariy identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

general PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.l State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

i .2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

IJ Contractor Name

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

35 Nutmeg Drive Suite 120
TrumbuH, CT 06611

1.5 Cotttractor Phone

Number

(203) 736-8810 Eat. 102

1.6 Account Number
05-93-49-4 70010-3099
05-95-47-4 70010-7949

1.7 Completion Date

December 31. 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

J 10.439.940

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate AgeiKy
Jonathan V. Gallo. Esq.. Interim Director

l.iO State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9246

1.11 Corttnctor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

of fAifipilUb '1.13 Acknowledgement: Sia^of<oi^gckt«a^ouhty of fA
On U, .beforetSeundewgncdofTicer. personallyappearcdthepersonideniified inblock l.l2.ofsat;sr8Ctorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11. and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the canaciiy
indicated in bicck 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notaiy Public m iujtiwof

fSeall

MM

ex p.aei

1.I3.2- Name and Title of Notary or Jusii— of ihe Pc

V. "Boss AifiiTA/vT TO 7>a£S
14 State A

vaTby1.16 A the

By:

Date:: MnjLIP-ivision

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Deborah H. Fourrtier, Esq. lytodiceid Director

H. Department of AdmJni.^'iion. Diiision of PersoruKi (if applicable}

Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execuiion) (if applicable)

By:

1.18 Approval by (he Govern^

By: On:

Page I of4



FORM NUMBER P-3T(Tm{«a S/8/IS)
Subject: Tf>niDt>rt>thm M»ni>i«fixnt for New Hwnimhiff Hmtlh Pnitrcllon Prwr«f.. (NIIIM'PI ¥rtm\um A»»ltiiin«

Prpflram fPAP\ and Fftwyor-Scnrtcei tFFS> fRKB.iOt^.QMUP.QM RANSt

AGREEMENT

The Sute of New Hsmpehire and the Contractor herdiy mutually apte as follow*:

Notice: Ttui tfteemoit and all of it* atiachmcnu ihall become pt^lic upon submiarico to Goverrwr aod
Eaccuiivc Council for approval. Any inromaiion (hat is private, conddaitial or proprietary must
be clearly ideniined to the agency and agreed to in writing prior le ligntng the conpact.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. JDEWTIFICATION.

I.I StM Ageney Nama
OepartmentofHcahh and Human Servicea

1.2 Slate Agcney Address
129 Pleasvii Street

Concord, KM 03301-3137

1.3 Cootfacta Nartis

Coordinated Tnn^onitien Solutions, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Addrea

33 Nutmeg Drive Suite 120
Tnitnbull.CT 06611

1.3 Contractor Phooe

Nionbo

(209) 7964X10 Bit. 102

1.6 Account Number MLU
09-93-4747q0lO.9O99
OS-95-47-470O1O-M49 7M6

1.7 Completioa Dale

December 31.3018

1.8 Price Umittiion

110,499.940

1.9 Contractini Officer for State Agency
Joaitha/t V. Oallo, Esq., Intffim Director

I.IO Slate Ageney Telephone Number
(603)271.9246

1. ] I Contractor Slgnatura 1.12 Name and TKle of Contractor Sipxatory

Jl.UK.^
1.19 Acknowledgement: SUffofcaaMdCr^l^TrCountyor /^AifLPi1.Lb

Ob ̂ 0 U, J*!"? .beforeOMtmderafncdorfica.peraonaJlyappcaredthepcraonidcatincd Ittblock 1.12,ora8ticfactcn]y
proven to be the peaon aXtos name U aigned in block I.I l.aad acknowledged that Fhe executed ihta docuntent la the capacity
indicated inbloek 1.12.

Xii^V»vaAJtS_ I/.^ ey-aci
IScall ' ii|*«|a»jO

A4Afx.6u£Ai<T£ Uois ft̂ i/#i/TAAT'u6 AiCirrAA/T Tfl
1.14 Sttie Agency Signature

Date;

1.13 NameandTitieofSiateAgencySignatory

Oeborah H. Foumler. Esq. ModlcaM OFocior

1.16 Approval by the Nil. Dcptnmcnl ofAdminiatration, DIvitiOQ of Personnel (IfappUcebk)

Bp: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Subitance and Execution) (IJ'applinhU)

By: On:

1.16 Approval by the Oovemor and Executive Council f(fepplice6r<;

By: On:

Page ) of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR^ERVICES TO
. BE PERFORMED. The Sute of New Himpshire, acting
through the agency ideniined in block I. I (''Slate'*), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfonn.
and the Contractor shaJt perfonn, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is irtcorporaied herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, aitd subject to the approval of-ihe Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, thia Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, ill Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effeaive Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not .
become effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemcrn to the
contrary, all obligations of (he Sute hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agrnht^ht immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The Slate
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

S. 1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporate herein by refacncc.
S.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete retmbursemetu to the Contractor for ill
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrformancehereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for (he Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
60:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, utd notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth tn block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all flutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation v duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This rruy include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ertsure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor, in addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisiora of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the State or United Sutes access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascenaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7. ( The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
persorvKl necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants (hat all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aher the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the.
procurement, administration or performance of (his

Page 2 of4
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Agreement. This provision shell survive terminaion of this
Agreement..
7.3 The Contracting OfTicer spcciftcti in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Siae't representative. In the event
of my dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Oiyica''s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OP OEFAULT/REMEOIES.
8.1 Anyone or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall conaitutc an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

6.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8. i J failure to perform any other coveium, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stale
may take my one. or more, or all, of the followtng actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days flt>m the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is

not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
,of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement md ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to (he Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
deiermines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set ofTagainst my otha obligations the Sute may owe to
the Contractor my damages the State sufTera by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidemiality/

PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorisi reproductions, drawings, malyies,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
prinlouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from.
the State or purchi^ with ftmds provided for that purpose
under this Agrcemem, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for my reason.
9.3 Confideniiility of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91'A or other caisting law. Disclosureof data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for my reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later ihm fifteen (13) days after the date of
lemiinaijcn. a report ("Terminaiion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, md the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of terminal Ion. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
descnbcd in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the pcrformmce of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail
respects m independent contractor, and is neither an agott nor
m employee of the State. Neiiha the Contractor nor my of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive my benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer my
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrinen notice and
consent of the Sute. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice md consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers md
employees, (Vom and against any and ail losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, md my and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Sute, iu officers
md employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

loweign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Sute. Thiscoveiunt in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and ■

maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 ,(X)0.(X>0pcr occuntnce and S2,000.000
aggregate; md
14. U special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in m amount not
lessthm 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and cndorsentents approved for use in the
Sute of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Sute of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials



14.3 The Contractor shall fUmish to the CorttractingOlTiccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
ofinsurance for all insurance required under (his Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer .
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to (he expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cenincaic(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccniflcate<s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modificadon of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15. I By »gning this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
Or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28I*A
("Workers' Compenioiion").
15.2 To (he extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂ A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
cooncction with activities which (he person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreemeni. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Worlcers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any
applicable renewa)(s) thereof, u4iich shall be attached and arc
incorporated hertin by referoice. The State shall (tot be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreerrtent.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof aflcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and ail of the
provisions hereof upon any f\irther or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to (he other patty
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
Unw of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval it required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreemeni shall be construed in accordance with (he
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the beiKfit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in (his Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD^ PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefii any third panics and (his Agreement shall not be

construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contaitted
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, constniction or meaning ofthe
provisions of this Agreemeni.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
fonh in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated hertinby
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are hdd by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the pinies. and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Oepertmenl of HeaKh and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire HoaHh Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Apptleablo to All Services

1.1. For the purposes of this contract, ail references to days shall be calendar
days, unless otherwise noted.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English profrciency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor shall confirm client eligibility for non-emergent transportation
services through the Department"s Medicald Management Information System
(MMIS).

1.4. The Contractor shall adhere to all information technology security
requirements, as specified'in Exhibit A-1, Information Technology Security
Requirements.

1.5. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. Ensure Premium Assistance Program (PAP) participants have access
to transportation in order to attend non-emergent. Medicaid covered
medical and dental appointments, as well as to pick up presaiptions.

1.5.2. Ensure Medicaid Fee-for-Servlce (FFS) participants eligible for
standard Medicaid or the Medicaid Aiternalive Benefit Plan (ABP)
have access to transportation in order to attend non-emergent,
Medicaid covered medical and dental appointments, as wed as to pick
up prescriptions.

1.5.3. Ensure various modes of transportation, including adult medical day.
are available for all members, including those members who ne^
special assistance and those members who use durable medical
equipment.

1.5.4. Process requests for mileage reimbursements properly submitted by
participants, Friends/Family of participants, and Volunteer drivers, in a
timely manner.

1.6. Contractor shall maintain a NH-spedfic call center located in NH with access
to interpreter services, and accommodations for speech and hearing-impaired
clients at no additional cost to individuals.

1.7. For the purposes of this contract, the term 'Vendor Providers' includes
subcontractors or any volunteer drivers who provide direct transportation
services to eligible clients pursuant to this Contract, but shall not include

itills£xnM A. Scope of Services Centreder Iretiib.-^
RPB.201704BP<02-Tr»fts



New Hampflhtre Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

Medicaid. participants or their friends or family members who provide
transportation for the participant to and from Medicaid covered appointments.
The Contractor shall;

1.7.1. Coordinate all transportation services by maintaining a networic of
transportation vendor providers. (The Contractor itself Is not the
provider of transportation.)

1.7.2. Ensure that the transportation shall be to the nearest, available
Medicaid- or Qualified Health Plan- enrolled medical or dental

provider of the necessary services via the shortest most economical
route;

1.7.3. Ensure that transportation outside of N.H.. M.A.. M.E., V.T. require
prior authorization by the Department; and

1.7.4. Ensure that the transportation being provided is not otherwise
available to the member free of charge.

1.7.5. Ensure the transportation provided is the least costly and appropriate
mode for each member.

1.8. The Contactor shall ensure transportation services are available to and from
non-emergent medically necessary Medicaid covered appointments, statewide
and, at times, to adjacent states. The Contractor shall use a priority of
utilization of transportation which shall be in the following order: recipient's
own vehicle; Friends/family transit; bus or other public transportation; volunteer
transit and taxi transit. The Contractor shall ask each member whether he/she
can drive and if not, whether a friend or family member can provide
transportation. If the member cannot drive and does not have a friend/family
member to provide transit, the Contractor shall ask the member If the member
can access public transportation. If the member cannot access public
transportation, the Contractor shall offer to provide transportation via a
volunteer driver or taxi service. The Contractor shall reimburse members who

drive themselves on a per mile basis and shall also reimburse them for parking
fees arxl tolls. .

1.9. The Contractor shall have the capability to accommodate special needs for
those who are physically or otherwise disabled such as but not limited to
providing special assistance for those memt>ers who use durable medical
equipment.

1.10. The Contractor may require 48 hour notice for non-urgent transportation
requests except for transportation requests to methadone. clinic services,
reimbursement for a member driving him/herself, trips Involving bus or rail
service or requ^ts that Involve friends/family.

EtftM A. Scop* at S«fvlcn Ceniraetor inWtis:
RrB-2017-OUBP42-Tiva
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transpoftation Mansflement for New Hampshire Health Protection Program {NHHPP|
Premium Assbtance Program (PAP| and Fee For Service Participants

1.11. The Contractor shall ensure transportation services are available on short
notice (less than 24 hours notification} for urgent medically necessary medical
appomtments or hospital discharges, and the Contractor shall provide all
members with written information on how to access transportation on a short
notice.

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure that vendor providers are paid for transportation
for mileage traveled from the pick-up location to the drop-off location. In cases
where there are no available Vendor Providers within 20 miles, the Contractor
shall pay Vendor Provider the mileage from and back to the starting point.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure that Friends and Family Mileage Reimbursement
Program claims are limited to the payment of one claim per trip regardless of
the number of passengers. The Contractor shall not pay separately for each
passenger.

2. Contactor Obli^tlons

2.1. Relationship with Vendor Providers. Contractor shall maintain vi/ritten'Vendor

Provider subcontracts with each of Its Vendor Providers requiring the Vendor
Providers to comply with the terms and conditions of this contract. The form of
Contractor's standard Vendor Provider subcontract and any material
amendments thereto must comply with applicable law and. upon the
Department's request, must be approved in advance by the Department. Upon
request, Contractor shall make available to the Department and to any
applicable regulatory authority a copy of each of Its Vendor Provider
subcontracts with Vendor Providers.

2.2. List of Vendor Providers. Contractor shall maintain and provide a list of

Vendor Providers to the. Department upon request and on a monthly basis.
The Department expressly reserves the right to reject, susperxi or terminate

_the participation of any Vendor Provider In the provision of non-emergent
transportation services as contemplated under this Agreement,

2.3. Provision of Covered Services. Contractor, through Vendor Provider
subcontracts with Vendor Providers, shall provide, or arrange for the provision
of, those non-emergent transportation services described in this Agreement.
Each Vendor Provider shall provide all Covered Services in accordance with
all legal requirements and recognized industry standards, tn providing such
services, Vendor Pt^oviders shall ensure that Covered Senrices are provided
within the time frames specified in this Agreement. .

2.4. Operational Standards Criteria. Contractor represents and warrants that
Contractor and Vendor Providers shall at ail times during this Agreement meet
and maintain the Department's operational standards criteria as describedrin
this Agreement, as may be revised from time to time by the Department.
Vendor Providers shall not provide Covered Services to Covered Persons

A. Scope of Sevicea ConirKtor mitisls
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unless and until Vendor Providers have met all requirements and operational
standards as described in this Agreement in addition to meeting all
requirements and operational standards of the Contractor. Or, if operational
standards are delegated to Vendor pursuant to the Delegated Contractor shall
supply its written Vendor Provider requirements, policies and procedures to
the Department as the Department reasonably requests in order to verify initial
and continued compliance with this Agreement. Contractor agrees to provide
the Department notice of any additions or deletions to its policies and
procedures on a monthly basis.

2.5. Determination of Covered Person EllQibilltv. Contractor shall determine
whether a person seeking Covered Services is a Covered Person and shall
determine whether the requested service is to a Medicaid covered
appointment. If the Department determines that such person was r>ot eligible
for coverage at the time the services were rendered or the medical/dental visit
was not Medicaid coverable, such services shall not be eligible for payment
under this Agreement. In no event shall the Contractor or the Vendor Provider
bill the member for Transportation services.. Service Protocols. Contractor
shall provide policies and procedures detailing service requirements applicable
to this Agreement 30 calendar days prior to service start or with the applicable
modifications to service provisions.

2.6. Compliance with Policies. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor Providers
through its provider agreements to, comply and cooperate with all applicable
Department policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. Additionally.
Contractor shall require Vendor Providers to certify and attest to (heir
compliance with all applicable policies, procedures, rules, and .regulations.
Such policies and procedures are subject to modification by (he Department at
its discretion, provided that the Department provides Contractor with thirty (30)
days prior written notice of material modifications to these pdides and
procedures.

2.7. Performance Standards. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor Providers
to participate in and cooperate with any performance standards outlined in this
Agreement. The Contractor shall submit a plan to the Department within
ninety (90) days of the contract effective date that includes, but is not limited
to;

2.7.1. A plan to increase and build the local provider network in Coos and
Grafton Counties, including proposed targets for increased network
capacity.

2.7.2. A plan to increase all members' access to transportation
reimbursement and transportation sen/ices.

EitfilbitA.ScoiMafSwvlCM ConlraclorlniliJhiO-^ K)
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2.8. Contractof Call Center. The Contractor shall operate a NH specific call center
located in NH. and in operation Monday through Friday, except for state
approved holidays. The call center shall be accessible through a statewide toll-
free number. The call center shall be staffed with courteous personnel v^o are
knowledgeable at>out the NHHPP PAP and Medicaid FFS to answer meml>er
Inquiries.

2.8.1. Contractor shall ensure that after regular business hours the member
call center is answered by an automated system with the capability to

. provide callers with information regarding operating hours and
instructions on how to obtain emergency medical transportation.

2.6.2. Contractor^shall ensure that after-hours calls are reviewed within an
hour of the member's call and if the request is urgent, that the call is
returned within that hour and transportation is scheduled within two
hours of the member's request. Non-urgent requests shall be retumed
on the next business day.

2.8.3. At a minimum, excluding weather emergency declarations by the
State of New Hampshire, the call center shall be operational:

2.8.3.1. Monday thru Friday : 6:00 am EST to 6:00 pm EST; and

2.8.3.2. During major program transitions, or peak events, as
determined by OHHS, additional hours and capacity shall be
accommodated by the Contractor subject to mutual
agreement in accordance with Paragraph 18 of Form P-37 of
this Contract.

2.6.4. The Contractor shall develop a means of coordinating its call center
with the OHHS Customer Service Center.

2.8.5. The Contractor shall develop a warm transfer protocol for members
who may call the incorrect call center to speak to the correct
representative. Should the Contractor establish capacity to provide
monthly reports to DHHS on the number of warm transfers made and
the program to which the member was transferred, those reports shall
be provided at the end of the first month of established functionality.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall establish a member hotline that shall be an

automated system that operates outside of the call center standard
hours, Monday through Friday and at all hours on weekends and
holidays, which shall be capable of accepting, recording and providing
instructions to incoming callers.

2.8.7. The Contractor shall have a comprehensive plan to handle call
volume that exceeds staff capacity. The plan shall include the

EiMM A, Scope d Setvlc** Contnctor initlsls
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capacity to roll calls over by shifting resources to accommodate within
one hour of the increase in call volume.

2.6.6. The Contractor shall ensure call center staff verify each caller's
Identity using at least two points of verification through the MMIS
system.

2.6.9. The Contractor shall develop telephone scripts, as approved by the
Department, which shall be used by call center staff.

2.8.10. The Contractor shall ensure the telephone system used to provide
sen/ices meets or exceeds the following reguirements:

2.6.10.1. Capability of transferring calls to the Department's Voice
Over Internet Protocol (VOIP) system.

2.6.10.2. Capability of accepting inbound and placing outbound calls.

2.8.10.3. Ability to transfer calls received that have unique
circumstances or situations that will need to be transferred to

the Department.

2.6.10.4. Ability to route calls to specific queues, such as an automatic
call distribution system. The system used during regular
business hours shall;

2.6.10.4.1. Provide information about the Department's
website.

2.6.10.4.2. Ability to track call statistics necessary to provide
reports specific to this contract.

2.6.11. The Contractor shall permit the Department to monitor live calls while
on-site at the call center. The Contractor shall make available the

same business day digital files of calls received, when requested by
the Department.

2.9. Grievance and Appeal Procedures. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor
Providers to:

2.9.1. Cooperate with the Departments Covered Person grievance and
appeal procedures.

2.9.2. . Report to the Department all.communications from and with Covered
Persons relating to Covered Person benefit determinations,
complaints, grievances, appeals.

2.9.3. Resolve all, member grievances, within thirty (30) calendar days from
the .date the grievance was received. For grievances involving
Vendor Providers, the Contractor shall provide a written report to the
Department tfiat indicates how the grievance was resolved, including
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whether the Vendor Provider was cited or issued a coaective action
plan.

2.9.4. Inform Covered Persons regarding the State Fair hearing process for
adverse determinations or denials of requested services, including but
not limited to, memt>ers right to a Stale fair hearing and how to obtain
a State fair hearing In accordance with (his Agreement and N.H.
Administrative Rule 200. If a member does rK)t agree with the
Contractor's denial, the member may file a request for a State fair
hearing within thirty (30) days of the date on the Contractor's notice of
resolution of the appeal or final adverse determination letter.

2.9.5. Provide to the Department all supporting documentation and records
relating to the denial and the request for a state fair hearing ajipeal
within three (3) calendar days from the date the appeal was received
by the Department.

2.9.6. The Contractor or its designee shall defend its decision for adverse
determination or denial of requested services on a member's appeal
at the State Fair Hearing, at no additional cost. DHHS staff member
will accompany Contractor to Fair Hearing.

2.10. Non-Solicitation. During the term of this Agreement, or any renewal thereof,
and for a period of six (6) months from the dale of termination, Contractor shall
not, and shall ensure that Vendor Providers do not:

2.1Q.1. Advise, counsel or solicit any Covered Persons to end enrollment with
a Plan, and will not solicit any Covered Persons to become enrolled
with any other Plan, or other hospitalization or medical payment plan
or insurance policy, for any reason.

2.10.2. Interfere in any manner with Departments contractual relationships
including but r>ot limited to those with other transportation or health
care providers.

2.11. Network Adequacy. Contractor shall ensure a sufficient number of vehicles in-
network, in accordance with the needs of Covered Persons and the standards

identified within this Agreement, as may be amended from time to time. The
composition of the types of vehicles in-network must be reflective of the needs
of Covered Persons.

2.11.1. Contractor must demonstrate network adequacy to the Department
sixty (60) days prior to Senrice Start, and every six (6) months or upon
request thereafter In accordance with this Agreement. If at any time
the Department identifies inadequacy in the network through any
performance related deficiencies as outlined in this Agreement or
othenvise identifies that there is a need for additional network

ExAibil A.Scap«ofSwvlc«3 Coft(r«ciar InKJah^
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capacity, the Department shall have the right to require Contractor to
inaease network capacity.

2.11.2. Contractor shall provide a plan for increasing network capacity within
fifteen (15) calendar days of the Department Identifying network
inadequacy for Department approval. Once approved, Contractor
shall execute said network capacity plan as expeditiously as possible.

2.12. RESERVED.

2.13. Contractor Provider Listinos. Contractor agrees that the Department may use
Contractor's and any Vendor Provider's name in marketing, advertisement,
and Covered Person information materials, including provider and related
directories. Vendor Providers may list the Department as among the
organizations for which they provide Covered Services, but shall not otherwise
use the Department's name without the Department's written consent
Contractor may permit Vendor Providers to display signs identifying the
Department within Vendor Providers' vehicles, provided such signage has
been approved or provided by the Department.

2.14. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall, and shall contractually require
Vendor Providers to, carry out all obligations under this Agreement and to
provide Covered Services in a manner prescribed under applicable federal and
Stale laws, regulations, administrative rutes, and codes, as well as the
Department's applicable policies and procedures. This Agreement shall be
subject to the applicable material terms of the Agreement.

2.15. Covered Person Communication. Contractor shall not. and shall ensure that
Vendor Providers do not. direct marketing efforts at any Covered Person.
Contractor shall, and shall require Vendor Providers to conduct all
communications with Covered Persons in a respectful manner.

2.16. Contractor Provider Outreach. Contractor shall have at least annual town hall
meetings with Vendor Providers to discuss and resolve outstanding issues,
conduct training, or any other reasonable purpose. In addition, maintain a
dedicated toll free line for transportation providers to call with any inquiries,
complaints, training needs, etc.

2.17. Information Systems. Contractor shall maintain such information data systems
necessary to provide data as required by this Agreement. Contractor shall be
responsible for the costs and expenses it incurs in relation to the
establishment and maintenance of such systems.

2.18. Department Exclusive Ver>dor Providers. Contractor shall accommodate
Department requests to maintain exclusive Vendor Provider relationships (not
in the Vendor network) for the exclusive use of Covered Person.

EtfifbU A. Scopa cf StrvicM Contnclor InUtt
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2.^9. Overpayments: Contractor shall promptly, but no later than within fifteen (15)
business days after receiving notice from the State, or on self-discovery by the
Vendor, retum to the State the full amount of any overpayment or erroneous
payment made by the State,

2.20. File Reviews. The Contractor shall give the Department access, upon request,
to its files to support any federal or state audit inquiries handled by the
Department's Program Integrity Unit. Upon request. Vendor shall provide
copies of requested files. The Department has the right to request records
directly from Vendor Providers for oversight monitoring.

3. Contractor/Department Engagement

3.1. Dedicated Resources. Contractor shall allocate certain customer sennce
representatives, provider relations representatives, quality assurance
technicians, accounting technicians and others necessary to facilitate the
transportation process. Contractor shall also allocate a dedicated resource to
act as a project manager for the Department.

3.2. Communication. Contractor's dedicated resource to the Department shall
have, at a minimum, one touch point call per week. As appropriate, (^tractor
shall engage additional resources within their organization to participate in the
weekly call. The Department, in its sole discretion, may elect to change the
frequency and duration of said meetings with reasonable notice to Contractor.
Contractor shall produce a detailed communications plan (Local Operations
Communications Plan) to supplernent the local presence as required by this
Agreement. The communications plan is due within (14) fourteen calerKiar
days of the executed agree^nent. and shall_require Department approval prior
to Imjjlementation.

3.3. Geographic IraininQ. Contractor shall ensure that all staff that will be assigned
to or have an opportunity to provide services to the Department shall have a
comprehensive understanding of New Hampshire's geography.

3.4. Local Operations Support. Contractor shall support Department local
operations as follows:

3.4.1. The Contractor shall assign a staff member to support the
Department's office locally. The Department and Contractor shall
mutually agree on the skillset and experience required of the local
preser>ce staff member. The Department shall have the right to
approve the designated staff member prior to placement. The
Department, in its sole discretion, resen/es the right to reduce the
required presence of the assigned Contractor staff member during the
course of this agreement.
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3.4.2. Contractor shall be required to implement a communications plan, as
approved by the Department, to support the effective communications
to Vendor Providers and local operations.

3.4.3. Contractor shall prepare a training program for Department
designated staff persons, to occur prior to the service start date,
containing Information as mutually agreed upon by both parties.

3.5. Staffmo Ratio. (Contractor shall maintain staffing ratios sufficient to meet or
exceed the service expectations and obdgaUons of this Agreement. Contractor
shall provide the Department with an initial staffing ratio within thirty (30) days
of execution of this Agreement for Department approval. Contractor staffing
ratios shall be provided by Contractor to the Department on a quarterly basis.
In the event of an anticipated change in service, such as an additional Product
Attachment, the Department shall provide Contractor with advanced notice in
accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall provide the bei^rtrnent with
revised staffing ratios to account for any anticipated change in Mrvice within
thirty (30) calendar days of notification. The Department and Contractor agree
to confer in good faith regarding dedicated Vendor staffing with respect to the
services outlined in this Agreement.

3.6. Agreement Closeout.

3.6.1. During the closeout period, the Contractor shall work cooperatively
with and supply program information to, any subsequent contractor
and DHHS.

3.6.2. The Contractor shall continue to submit the information and records
required under this Agreement within the time frames required.

3.6.3. Effective fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the last day of the
closeout period, the Contractor shall work cooperatively with the new
Contractor to process service authorization requests received.
Disputes between the Contractor and the r>ew contractor regardirig
service authorizations shall be resolved by DHHS.

3.6.4. The Contractor shall be financially responsible for all other approved
services when the service Is provided on or before the last day of the
closeout period.

3.7. Compliance with rules to ensure Federal financial oarticlDation. Contractor
shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR 440.170(aK4)(ii) paragraphs (A) through
(E). Federal financial participation Is available at the medical assistance rate
for the cost of a written brokerage contract that:

3.7.1. 42 CFR 440 170fa)f4)fii)(A) Except as provided in paragraph
(aX4Xii)(B) of this section, prohibits the broker (including contractors,
owners, Investors. Boards of Directors, corporate officers, and
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employees) from providing non-emergency medical transportation
services or making a referral or subcontracting to a transportation

'  service provider if:

3-7.1.1. 42 CFR 440:i70faU4i(ii){Ai(1] The broker has a financial
relationship with the transportation provider as defined at §
411.354(a) of this chapter with "transportation broker'
substituted for "physician" and "non-emergency
transportation" substituted for "DHS": or

3.7.1.2. 42 CFR 440.170fa)f4WfUA}(2) The broker has an immediate
family member, as defined at § 411.351 of this chapter, that
has a direct or indirect financial relationship with the
transportation provider, with the term "transportation broker"
substituted for "physidan."

3-7.2. 42 CFR 440.170(a}{4){ii){D) In referring or sut>contracting for non-
emergency medical transportation with transportation providers, a
broker ntay not withhold necessary non-emergency medical
transportation from a Medicald benefidary or provide fx)n-emergency
medical transportation that is not the most appropriate and a cost-
effective means of transportation for that benefidary for the purpose
of financial gain, or for any other purpose.

3.7.3. 42 CFR 440.170(aU4l(hyE) The non-Federal share of all Medicaid
. 1 payments under the transportation brokerage program must be in

compliance with applicable Federal requirements in sections
1902(a)(2) and 1903(w) of the Act. and applicable Federal regulations
set forth at § 433.50 through § 433.74 of this chapter.

4. Technology Requirements

^•1. MapDlno Svstems. Mapping/distance software used to calculate trip mileage
for reimbursernent and related purposes must be updated on a monthly basis
to ensure accurate geographic code distribution.

4.2. Reporting Svstems. Contractor shall maintain the technology necessary to
support the production of reports including, but not limited to: assigned trips;
completed trips; member no-shows; provider no-shows; rejected trips; and
cancelled trips, and costs for trips.

4.3. Online Functionality. Vendor shall Implement online system for submitting
claims and mileage Contractor information.

4-4. Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) transaction processing and interfacing with
the NH MMIS tor member eligibility verification: Vertoors shall verify member
NHHPP eligibility for the date of service either by submitting an ASC XI2N 270
eligibility inquiry transaction and receiving the 271 eligibiilty inquiry response,
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submitting an online eligibility verification request, or calling the automated
voice response system. Failure to confirm eligibility for the date of service will
result in claims not being paid if the member is determined during claims
processing not to be eligible.

4.5. Electronic Data Interchange Member Enrollment Processino - Contractor shall

receive and process member benefit plan enrollment data from the MMIS In
the form of an ASC 834 Benefit Enrollment transaction if the vendor chooses
to receive member enrollment data.

4.6. Electronic Data Interchange Claims Processino - will receive capitation
payment information from MMIS using the ASC X12N 820 Professional
trarisaction or other supplemental payment reports.

4.7. Electronic Data interchange Encounter Data- Contractor will submit encounter

data at least weekly to the MMIS using the ASC X12 837 Professional
transaction standard.

5. Vendor Provider Requirements

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure all Vendor Providers are compliant with the
following requirements, which shall be included as minimum requirements in
all Vendor Providers $ut>contracts. Requirements include, but are not limited
to:

5.1.1. Confidentialitv. Vendor Providers shall treat every aspect of Covered
Services as confidential, including the fact of Department eligibility
and/or enrollment and any or all information pertaining to a Covered
Person's physical or mental health status or condition. Each Verxtor
Providers shall execute a valid HIPAA subcontractor agreement with
Vendor pursuant to the terms of Vendor's Business Associate
Agreement with the Department.

5.1.2. Hold Harmless. Vendor Providers shall accept the amounts paid by
Vendor for Covered Services furnished to Covered Persons as

payment in full and in no event, including but not limited to
nonpayment by Payer or Vendor. Payor's or Vendor's insolvency, or
breach of Vendor's agreement with the Vendor Provider, shall the
Vendor Provider bill, charge, collect a deposit from, seek
compensation, remuneration or reimbursement from or have any
recourse against a Covered Person, the Department, the Payor (if the
Payor has made payments in accordance with this Agreement) or
parties other than V^or for Covered Services provided to Covered
Persons in accordance with this Agreement.

5.1.3. Leoal Compliance.
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5.1.3.1.Compliance. Licensure and Certifications. Vendor Providers
and, as applicable, any drivers employed or contracted by
Vendor Providers, shall comply with all applicable local, state,
and federal laws and regulations, and shall hold in good
standing any and all licenses and cenirications required under
such laws and regulations for the provision of Covered
Services.

5.1.3.2.Safetv and Comfort Standards.' Vendor Providers shall
comply with alt applicable local, « state, and federal
transportation safety standards, Department policies and

procedures and applicable industry and accreditation
standards relating to passenger safety and comfort, including
but not limited to:

5.1.3.2.1. Requirements relating to the maintenance of
vehicles and equipment.

5.1.3.2.2. Passenger and wheelchair accessibility.

5.1.3.2.3. Availability and functioning of seat belts.

5.1.4. Insurance. Section 5.1.4. through 5.1.4.4. apply to commercial
vendor providers and not to volunteer providers. Insurance
requirements for volunteer providers are set forth in Section 5.1.4.5.
Throughout the term of the subcontract with Vendor, and for so long
as Vendor Provider is providing Covered Services in accordance with
this Agreement. Vendor Provider shall obtain and maintain insurance,
irtcluding but not limited to automobile liability insurance and general
commerdal liability insurance, as Is necessary to provide coverage for
losses and liabilities arising out of the acts and/or omissioos of Vendor
Providers (or their respective employees and/or agents) In the
performance of, or injuries sustained during the provision of, Covered
Services to Covered Persons as contemplated in this Agreement.

5.1.4.1.For commerdal vendor providers ("Vendor Providers"), such
Insurance coverage shall be in amounts that are in keeping
with Industry standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum amounts of
which shall be no\ less than $500,000 for automobile liability to
indude bodily injury and property damage to one person for
any one accident, and $7M,000. for bodily injury and property
damage to two or more person for any one acddent, including
coverage for all owned, hired, or non^owned vehicles, as
applicable.
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5.1.4.2.Such insurance coverage shall list the Contractor and the
Department as additional Insureds, and shall be evidenced by
certificates of insurance issued by one or more Insurance
companies licensed to do business in New Hampshire,
containing a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation
endoreement.

5.1.4.3.Vendor Providers shall forward copies of such certificates of
insurance to the Vendor prior to commencement of Covered
Services, and shall issue to the Contractor and the
Department, at any time upon request, copies of any
applicable certificates of insurance, renewal, surcharge,
cancellation notice, and/or verification of coverage.

5.1.4.4.Vendor Providers shall provide the Contractor with at least
fifteen (15) days advance written notice in the event of
cancellation, restriction or non-renewal of any insurance
coverage required herein.

5.1.4.5.Volunt6er drivers shall obtain and maintain insurance,
Including but not limited to automobile liability insurance as Is
necessary to provide coverage for losses and liabilities arising
out of the acts and/or omissions of the Volunteer driver.

5.1.5. Performance Commitments.

5.1.5.1-Contractor No-Show Limits. No-shows are defined as
instances where a Covered Person has requested
transportation but where the transportation request is not
fulfilled by the Contractor through no fault of the Covered
Person. The Contractor shall have a zero tolerance policy for
no-shows. Upon a report of no-show. Contractor shall:

5.1.5.1.1. Arrange for alternative transportation, if
practicable.

5.1.5.1.2. Complete an investigation into the root cause of
the no-show, with findings reported to the
Department within ten (10) business days.

5.1.5.1.3. Develop a plan to ensure sustainable
performance of transportation for affected
Covered Persons.

5.1-S ̂ .Vendor Corrective Action Rans.

5.1.5.2.1. If there are greater tfan tvvo (2) Vendor Provider
no shows within a thirty (30) calerxJar day time
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period for a unique, individual Covered Person,
the Contractor shall immediately take steps to
resolve identified risks with Vendor Provider,
including but not limited to. investigation of no-
show drcumstances.

5.1.5.2.2. If there are four (4) Vendor Provider no-shows
within a thirty (30) calendar day time period
affecting one or more Covered Person(s),
Contractor shall implement a Vendor Corrective
Action Plan (CAP) for Vendor Provider. The CAP
must be sent to the Department, followed by a
summary report when CAP is completed.

5.1.5.3.Vendor Provider No-Show Responsibilitv. The Contractor
shall be responsible for facilitating the subsequent
rescheduling of transportation following a Vendor Provider rx>-
show, Vendor Provider cancellation less than twenty-four (24)
hours in advance or Vendor failure to identify a Vendor
Provider for a trip. The Contractor shall t>e responsible for any
fees or costs incurred by the Department or Covered Person
as a result of (he no-show or late cancellation. Any such fees
shall be deducted from Contractor's compensation as outlined
Section 7. Performance Measures and Penalties.

5.1.5.4.Vendor refuelinQ. Vendor providers shall not be permitted to
refuel vehicles while the vendor provider is transporting a
rnember.

S.I.S.S.Outbound Calls and Member Confirmation. The Contractor
shail confirm transportation with Covered Person, upon a
Covered Person's request. The Contractor shall call the
member at least twenty-four (24) hours or within a time period
as specified by the Covered Person, in advance of the
scheduled transportation time. All outbound calls to members
shall be in accordance with applicable Federal regulations and
State laws, including but not limited to Telephone
Communication Protection Act (TCPA) 47 USC 227.

5.1.5.6.Trip Assignment. The Contractor shall ensure trips are
scheduled within or before the required advance notice period,
as mutually defined by the parties, are assigned to a Vendor
Provider. If no Vendor Provider is found, the Vendor shall:

5.1.5.6.1. Communicate such to the Covered Person at
least twenly-four (24) hours before the scheduled

&MbtiA.ScopeorS«fvic« ContrtclorWltah:
RFB-2017-OM8P-02-T(8ns
PagaiSofU

.Qxw
3



N«w H«mpahlr« Oepartmsnt of H«aHh and Human Sarvicat
Tranaporutlon Managamant for Naw Hampshira Health Protection Program |NHHPP)
Premium Aaatotance Program (PAP) and Fee For Sarvica Participants

trip time. Fadiltate subsequent transportation
arranoements.

5.1.5.7-Availabilitv of Durable Medical Eouioment (DME). Wherever
possible. Contractor shall arrange for Verxlor Providers with
capabilities to provide OME to Covered Persons during
transportation when such request Is made in scheduling
transportation. DME shall Include, but not be limited to,
wheelchairs and oxygen.

5.1.5.8.Ctaims Processino. The Contractor must process ninety-five
percent (95%) of all Vendor Provider clean claims and
member or friends/family mileage reimbursement requests
within thirty (30) calendar days from date of clean claim
receipt, and one hundred percent (100%) of the claims within
sixty (60) days. Contractor shall not process non clean claims.

5.1.5.9.Call Recordinos. The Contractor shall produce call recordings
requested by the Department within one (1) business day of
request.

5.1.5.10. Vendor Provider Monitoring. The Contractor shall submit to

the Department for approval a plan for a Vendor Performance
report card including standards and quantitative metrics.

5.1.5.10.1. Vendor Providers receiving a score of less than
ninety five percent (95%) for successive
monitoring periods shall be put on a Corrective
Action Plans.

5.1.5.10.2. The terms of the CAP shall be made available to

the Department. In Us sole discretion, the
Department may request termination of a Vendor
Provider for failure to successfully perform under
a CAP.

5.1.6. Vehicle Standards and Safety Inspections. The Contractor shall

monitor Vendor Providers to ensure compliance with the vehicle and
safety standards outlined in this section.

5.1.6.1.Condition of Vehicle and Safety Eouipment. Vehicles used in
the provision of Covered Services CVehicles"), shall be
properly maintained for the Covered Persons' comfort and
safety Such maintenance includes, but is not limited to.
ensuring the following:

5.1.6.1.1. Interior of Vehicles must be clean and well-
maintained.
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5.1.6.1.2. Availability of an appropriate and adequate
seating for secure and safe transport for each
Covered Person and escort, child or personal
care attendant, artd persons with disabilities.

5.1.6.1.3. Strict.adherence.to prohibition of smoking in all
vehicles while transporting recipients. All vehicles
shall post 'no smoking' signs in all vehicle
interiors, easily visible to the passengers.

5.1.6.1.4. Availability of appropriate safety equipment shall
be present and operable in the Vehicle, including
but not limited to the following;

5.1.6.1.4.1. First Aid Kit.

5.1.6.1.4.2. Accident Report Forms.

5.1.61.4.3. Roadside reflective or waming
devices.

5.1.6.1.4.4. Flashlight.

5.1.6.1.4.5. Chains or other traction devices

(when appropriate).

5.1.6.1.4.6. Disposable gloves.

5.1.6.1.4.7. One (1) full charged dry carbon
dioxide fire extinguisher, to be
maintained in efficient operating
condition, with at least a 1A:BC

rating and bearing the label of
Underwriter's Laboratory, Inc. The
fire extinguisher shall be securely
mounted on the vehicle in a clearly
marked compartment and readily
acce$sible(5.1.6.1.4.7 is optional for
Volunteer drivers);

5.1.6.1.5. Vehicles shall be maintained in good operating
condition, and must include, among others, the
following items In functioning condition:

5.1.6.1.5.1. Side and rear view mirrors.

5.1.6.1.5.2. Horn.

5.1.6.1.5.3. Functioning speedometer and
odometer.
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5.1.6.1.5.4. Functioning two-way communication
system to link all vehicles to the
transportation providers' place of
business.

5.1.6.1.5.5. Worthing turn signals, headlights,
taillights, and windshield wipers.

5.1.6.1.5.6. Adequate and functioning heating
and air conditioning systems.

5.1.6.1.5.7. Seatbelts shall be equipped with an
adjustable driver's restraining belt
with the requirements of FMVSS
209, 'Seat Belt Assemblies' (See 49
C.I=.R. 571.209) and FMVSS 210,
'Seat Belt Assembly Anchorages.*
(See 49 C.F.R. 571.210).

5.1.6.2.Vehide Maintenance.

5.1.6.2.1. Vendor Provider shall maintain vehicle

maintenance In accordance with;

5.1.6.2.1.1. Manufacturer's safety and
mechanical operating and preventive
maintenance standards inclusive of

tire inflation and tread groove
pattem; and

5.1.6.2.1.2. State and Federal laws, specifically
Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards (FMVSS). 49 C.F.R. Part
571, Sections 102, 103. 104, 105,
108, 207, 209, 210, 217, 220. 221,
225, 302, 403 and 404, October 1.
2004, are hereby incorporated by
reference.

5.1.6.2.2. Commercial Vendor Provider shall maintain and

provide written documentation of preventive
maintenance, regular maintenance, inspections,
lubrication arxj repairs performed for each vehicle
under their control. Such records shad be

maintained for at least seven (7) years and
include, at a minimum, the fodowirig information:
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5.1.6.2.2.1. Identiftcation of Ihe vehicle, including
make, model and license number or
other means of positive identification
and ownership.

5.1.6.2.2.2. Date, mileage, type of inspection,
maintenance, lubrication or repair
performed, and a description of
each.

5.1.6.2.2.3. If not owned by Vendor Provider, the
name of any person or lessor
fumlshing any vehicle.

5.1.6.2.2.4. The name and address of any entity
or contractor performing an
inspection, maintenance, lubrication
or repair.

5.1.6.3.Information Displayed. All vehicles of Commercial vendors
shall have;

5.1.6.3.1. The Vendor Provider's name, vehicle number (if
applicable), and the Contractor's phone numtjer
prominently displayed within the interior of each
vehicle.

5.1.6.3.2. Instnjctions for rx}rmal and emergency operation
of the lift or ramp shall be carried or displayed In
every vehicle.

5.1.6.3.3. Information noted in Section 2.1.6.1.3., above.

5.1.6.4.AOA. Vehicles of Commerciar vendors shall comply with the
American's with Oisabililies Act (ADA) regulations. Any
vehicles used for the purpose of transporting Individuals with
disabilities (paratransit) shall meet the requirements set forth
In 49 CFR Part 38, hereby Incorporated by reference, and the
following:

5.1.6.4.1. Installation of a wheelchair lift or ramp shall not
cause the manufacturer's GWVR, gross aide
weight rating or tire rating to be exceeded.

5.1.6.4.2. Except in locations within three and one half (SVi)
Inches of the vehicJe floor, all readily accessible
exposed edges or other hazardous protrusions of
parts of wheelchair lift assemblies or ramps that
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are located in the passenger compartment shall
be padded with energy absorbing material to
mitigate injury In normal use and in case of a
collision. This requirement shall also apply to
parts of the vehicle associated with the operation
of the lift or ramp.

5.1.6.4.3. The controls for operating the lift shall be at a
location where the driver or lift attendant has a full
view, unobstructed by passengers.^ of the lift
platform, its entrance and exit, and the wheelchair
passenger, either directly or with partial
assistance of mirrors. Lifts located entirely to the
rear of the driver's seat shall not be operable from
the driver's seat, but shall have an override
control at the driver's position that can be
activated to prevent the lift from being operated
by the other controls (except for emergerrcy
manual operation upon power failure).

5.1.6.4.4. The installation of the wheelchair lift or ramp and
Its controls and the method of attachment In the
vehicle body or chassis shall not diminish the
structural integrity of the vehicle nor cause a
hazardous imbalance of the vehicle. No part of
the assembly, when installed and stowed, shall
extend laterally beyond the normal side contour of
the vehicle or vertically beyond the lowest part of
the rim of the wheel closes to the lift.

5.1.6.4.5. Each wheelchair lift or ramp assembly shall be
legibly and permanently marked by the
manufacturer or Installer with the following
minimum information:

5.1.6.4.5.1. The manufacturer's name arxJ
address.

5.1.6 4.5.2. The month and year of manufacture.

5.1.6.4.5.3. A certificate that the wheelchair lift or
ramp securement devices, and their

installation, conform to State
requirements applicable to
accessible vehicles.

5.1.6.5.Vehicle State Inspection Recuirement. '
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5.1.6.5.1. Vendor Provider shall ensure all vehicles are
inspected and meet state inspection standards.
Vendor Providers Identified in this section,
exclude public transportation/mass transit, which
are required to comply with federal and state
requirements and Inspections. All vehicles used
to transport Covered Persons shall be state
inspected and registered in accordance with state
law prior to the provision of services. Records and
documentation of annual state as well as

documentation of any required corrective actions
shall be retained, for compliance review, a
minimum of seven (7) years by the Vendor
Provider.

5.1.6.5.2. Vendor Provider shall obtains and provide to the
Vendor the relevant documentation that the

vehicle meets the standards prescribed by law
and is safe for transportation services.
Documentation of the state inspection shall
include:

5.1.6.5.2.1. Identification of the individual(s)
performing the Inspection.

5.1.6.5.2.2. The dale of inspection.

5.1.6.5.2.3. Identification of the vehicle

inspected.

5.1.6.5.2.4. Identification of the equipment and
devices inspects including the
identrfication of equipment and
devices found deficient or defective

(specifically Identify corrections
required In order for the Vendor
Provider vehicle to meet the

requirements of the state
inspection.).

5.1.6.5.2.5. Identification of deficient or defective

Items and notice of the actions taken
to complete the corrective the
deficiencies.

5.1.6.5.3. For taxis and any other commercial, vehicles,
Vendor Provider shall ensure all vehicles are

ExMbit A. Scope of Swvlcts Comrectcr
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maintained and operated in accordance with town
or city municipal ordinances or code in addition to
any applicable state or federal law requirements.

5.1 .e.G-Venddr Provider Pre-Service inspections.

5.1.6.6.1. Contractor shall require Vendor' Providers to
complete an inspection of all vehicles prior to the
provision of services each day. The inspection
shall ensure the vehicle is safe, clean and in good
working order. The Vendor Provider shall not
permit the provision of services and shall report to
the Vendor, all defects and defidencles that are
likely to affect safe operation or cause mechanical
malfunctions that result in the discontinuation of
vehicle use in their fleet. The Vendor Provider
shall make available upon request of the Vendor,
documentation of a vehicle's corrective action
when safe operation was in question in
accordance with the above.

5.1.6.6.2. Commercial VerxJor Provider's inspection log.
shall contain, and be available for audit by
Vendor upon request, at a minimum the following
inspected items;

5.1.6.6.2.1. Service and Parking Brakes;

5.1.6.6.2.2. Tires and Wheels (noting the tires
and wheels are visibly free from
cracks and distortion do not have
missing, cracked or broken mounting
lugs);

5.1.6.6.2.3. Steering;

5.1.6.6.2.4. Horn;

5.1.6.6.2.5. Lighbng, including but not limited to
devices, directional, and hazards;

5.1.6.6.2.6. Windshield wipers;

5.1.6.6.2.7. Mirrors; ;

5.1.6.6.2.8. Passenger doors and seats;

5.1.6.6.2.9. Exhaust systems;
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5.1.6.6.2.10.Equipment for transporling
wheelchairs; and

6.1.6.6.2.11.Safety and security and emergency
equipment.

5.1.6.6.3. The results of safety inspections shall be
randomly audited by the Contractor during site
visits with the accompanying written report
provided to the Department on an ongoing basis
but In any event not less than annually and as
needed based on complaint data.

5.1.6.6.4. Records of Commercial Vendor Provider daily
pre-operational inspections shall be maintained
for compliance review for a period no less than
seven (7) years.

5.1.7. Driver Standards.

5.1.7.1.Driver Resoonslbilitv and Trainino.

5.1.7.1.1. Contractor and Vendor Providers shall inform and
formally train drivers of their job duties and
responsibilities, and shall provide training for all
equipment related to their Vehicles, including but
not limited to the following training programs:

5.1.7.1.1.1. Briefing about the transportation
program, reporting forms. Vehide
operation and pre-service ir^spection
requirements, and the geographic
area in which they will be providing
service (to indude information
associated with the Provider
Invoicing Policy and Procedures);

5.1.7.1.1.2. Road testing with the type of Vehicle
the driver will be operating; and

5.1.7.1.1.3. Completion of defensive driving
course, or an equivalent, within six

(6) months of date of hire for drivers
with moving violations within the past
one (1) calendar year.

5.1.7.1.2. Contrador ar>d Vendor Provider shall require the
completion of training with explidt instructional
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and procedural training and testing in the
following:

5:1.7.1.2.1. Safety policies and responsibilities;

5.1.7.1.2.2. Operational vehicle ar>d equipment
inspections;

5.1.7.1.2.3. Basic operations, maneuvering and
defensive driving techniques;

5.1.7.1.2.4. Boarding, alighting, assisting arxl
securing passengers;

5.1.7.1.2.5. Operation of wheelchair lift arxJ other
special equipment and driving
conditions; .

5.1.7.1.2.6. Handling emergencies, security
threats, and threat awareness,
Including communication of unsafe
conditions.

5.1.7.2.Driver Selection. Reporting and Maintenance of Records.

5.1.7.2.1. Vendor Provider's shall ensure driver selection,
includes at a minimum the requirements identiried
as follows:

5.1.7.2.1.1. Driver's appropriate and valid State -
driver's license, including a valid
state chauffeur or taxi

license/designation, if applicable;

5.1.7.2.1.2. Review of driver applicant's criminal
background and Division of Motor
Vehicles record, including review of
both personal and commercial or
business driving record five (5) years
in arrears, which shall verify that the
driver applicant has not:

5.1.7.2.1.2.1., Had more than three
(3) moving violations
and/or accidents

within the last three (3)
years and that the
applicant or employee
has had no more than
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two (2) moving
violations, two (2)
accidents. or a

combination of more
than two (2) moving
violations and/or

accidents within the

last twelve (12)
months.

5.1.7.2.1.2.2. Been convicted of any
crimes against people
or any drug or alcohol
related offenses.

5.1.7.2.1.3. Any exceptions to Section
2.1.7.2.1.2., at>ove shall be made

only with the prior approval of
Department to assure the Covered
Persons will be in no jeopardy from
the driver.

5.1.7.2.2. Vendor Provider and drivers are required to report
fraudulent use of transportation services to the
Contractor, who Is responsible for reporting
fraudulent activity to the Department;

5.1.7.2.3. Vendor Provider and drivers shall be required to
report or provide notice In accordance with the
provisions of this agreement;

5.1.7.2.4. Commercial Vendor Provider shall maintain

records:

5.1.7.2.4.1. Associated with the appropriate
vetting and selection of its drivers,
Including background checks and
records of the driver's completed
training.

5.1.7.2.4.2. For tracking of preventive and
routine vehicle service for a
minimum period of seven (7) years,
including daily inspection reports.

5.1.7.2.4.3. Any documents required as a part of
this agreement.
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5.l .7.3.Driver Safety Oblioations. Vendor Provider shall ensure that

all drivers satisfy the following requirements:

5.1.7.3.1. Drivers shall maintain a valid driver's license and

shall comply with state and federal regulations for
vehicle transport on roadways.

5.1.7.3.2. No driver shall use alcohol, narcotics, illegal
drugs or drugs that impair ability to perform v^ile
on duty.

5.1.7.3.3. No driver shall operate a vehicle when impaired
as described above and if impaired by illness or
fatigue.

5.1.7.3.4. Dnvers may not assist wheelchair passengers up
or down more than one (1) step, unless it is
determined by the Covered Person or guardian
and driver that is can be performed safely.

5.1.7.3.5. The driver shall ensure the safe transport of
children In accordance with state law. including
the proper installation and use of a car seat
based on the age and height of the child.

5.1.7.3.6. Vehicle transfer points shall provide shelter,
security and safety of Covered Persons;

5.1.7.3.7. Drivers shall not;

5.1.7.3.7.1. Operate a vehicle with Inoperable
passenger doors or with the doors in
the open position.

5.1.7.3.7.2. Leave the vehicle unattended in an

unsafe condition with passenger(s)
aboard at any time.

5.1.7.3.7.3. Permit use of the vehicle In a

manner not permitted by the
construction or design of the vehide.

5.1.7.3.7.4. Operate any vehide with recapped,
regrooved or retreaded tires on the

-  steering axle.

5.1.7.3.7.5. Operate undean vehicles or vehides
containing strong odors.

5.1.7.3.8. The Vendor Provider shall not:

:0L1VExMbit A. Scope of Swvlcn CcntiocMr initials:
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5.1.7.3.8.1. Permit or require a driver to drive
more than twelve (12) hours in any
one twenty-four (24) hour period.
The driver is not permitted to drive
until the driver fulfills the requirement
of eight (8) consecutive hours off
duty.

5.1.7.3.8.2. Refuel vehicles in a dosed building.

5.1.7.3.9. The Vendor shall establish procedures for drivers
to deal with situations in which emergency care is
needed for Covered Persons that they have been
assigned to transport.

5.1.7.3.10. For safety and protection of the public due to
conditions such as adverse weather, disaster,
security threat, a road or traffic condition, medicai
emergency, or an accident.

5.1 ■7.4.Driver Service Obligations. Vendor Provider shall ensure that
ali drivers satisfy the following requirements:
5.1.7.4.1. All drivers shall wear or have visible, easily

readable proper identification;
5.1.7.4.2. Drivers shai! offer boarding assistance if

necessary or requested to the seating portion of
the vehicle. Boarding assistance shall include but
not be limited to:

5.1.7.4.2.1. Opening and dosing the vehicle
door.

5.1:7.4.2.2. Fastening the seat belt.
5.1.7.4.2.3. Storage of mobility assistive devices.

5.1.7.4.3. Drivers shall not refuel when passengers are in
the vehicle.

5.1.7.4.4. Drivers shall only pick up and deliver Covered
Persons to locations assigned by Vendor.

5.1.7.4.5. Vendor Drivers shall speak English.
5.1.7.4.6. Vendor Drivers shall be courteous at all times

with their passengers.
5.1.7.4.7. Covered Persons property that can be carried by

the passenger and/or driver may be stored safely
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on the vehicles at no additional charge. The
driver shall provide safe and secure
transportation of the following items, as
applicable, within the capabilities of the vehicle:

5.1.7.4.7.1. Wheelchairs.

5.1.7.4.7.2. Child seats.

5.1.7.4.7.3. Stretchers.

5.1.7.4.7.4. Secured oxygen.

5.1.7.4.7.5. Personal assistive devices.

5.1.7.4.7.6. Intravenous devices.

5.1.7.4.8. Driver's shall identify themselves by name and
company in a manner that is conducive to
communications with a specific passenger, upon
pick up of each Covered Person, group of
Covered Persons, or representative guardian or
associate of Covered Person except in situation
where the driver transports the Covered Person,
on a recurring basis.

5.1.7.4.9. Driver's shall not:

5.1.7.4.9.1. Leave the vehide unattended with

passenger(s) aboard for longer than
five (5) minutes.

5.1.7.4.9.2. Wear strong fragrances, eat, drink,
smoke, or text in the vehide unless

medical necessity, exdusrve to fluid
consumption, is required for
sustenance during transport.

5.1.7.4.10. The paratransit driver shall provide the Covered
Person with boarding assistance, if necessary or
requested, to the seating portion of the vehide.
The boarding assistance shall indude, but not be
limited to, opening the vehide door, fastening the
seat belt or utilization of wheel chair securement

devices, storage of mobility assistive devices and
dosing the vehide door. In the door-througfvdoor
paratransit service category, the driver shall open
and dose doors to buildings, except In situations
in which assistance in opening and/or dosing
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building doors would not be safe for passengers
remaining in the vehide. The driver shall provide
assisted access in a dignified manner.

5.1.8. Representation and Warranties. The Vendor Provider shall represent
and warrant any information furnished to the Contractor in connection
with the background check of the Vendor Provider and drivers is true
and correct and the Vendor Provider is not now and never has been

exduded from the partidpation in any state of federal health care
program.

Exhibit A. Soopt of S«rvic«s Contractor InilitU;
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N«w Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Manasement for New HampsMre Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Assbtance Program {PAP) and Fee For Service Partfclpanta

6. Repofttng Requirements

6.1. The Contractor shall provide at! performance reports to the Department as specified in TaWe S.l-A;

6.2. The Department shall provide spedfrcatiorts for all performance reports in Table 6.1-A;

6.3. The Contractor shall meet the performance standards indicated in Table 6.1-A; and

6.4. Failure to meet performance startdards may result in liquidated damages as indicated In Table 6.1-A.

TA6l£ 6.1-A Ptffofmence Reports aitd Uqutilated Damages

Reporting Reference
ID

Name Type Measure
Data Pertod

Standard Due
Date

Rrst Date
Required

Standard UquldatBd
Damages

CLAIM.01
Timely Clean Claims
Processing Within 30
Calendar Days

Measure

Numerator

and

denominator

calculated

daily/
summary

measure

reported
monthly

45 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
65%

$1.000 for each
tenth of a

percentage point
betow the

standard.

CLAIM.02

Claims Quality
Assurance; Claims
Processing Accuracy

Measure Quarterty,
45 calertdar days
after end of
reporting period

^8%

$1,000 for each
tenth of a

percentage point
below the

specified
accuracy rate,
assessed on a

monthly basts.

EmiM A. Scop* of Strvlce*
RF B-2017.OMBP-02-Tfwo

PtceSOef 3S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Tranaportalion ManaQementfor New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Asslstanee Program (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

TABLE 6.1-A Ferfomtanee Reports and Uquhlsted OamagsB

Reporting Reference
(D

Name Type Measuie

Oeta Period
Standard Due
Data

First Date

Required
Standard Liquidated

Damaqee

COMMUNICATION.01 Communicatjons Plan Plan Annually August 31st

Within 14

calendar

days of Uie
executbn

of the

agreement

EMERGENCY.01

Emergertcy and
Disaster Recovery
Plan

Plan Annually August 31st

Within 60

days of the
execution

of the

agreement.

FINANCIAL.01
StarxJard Audited

Annual Financial
Statements

Narrative

Report
Annually

2 months after

the end of the

calendar veer

FINANCIAL.02
Vendor Provider

Reimbursement Rates
Table Annually December 31st

Within 30

days of the
execution

of the

agreement

FWA.01
Fraud Waste and

Abuse Report
Narrative

Report ,
Quarterly

2 months after

end of reporting
period

GRIEVANCE.01
Merhber Grievance

Log
Table Monthly

20 calendar days
after erxj of

reporting period

EjMM A. Seopt of Servicn
RF&>2017-OM8P-02-Trans

Paet31ef3S
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N»w Hamp«Mr« Department of Health and Human Servicem
Tranaportatlen Manaflement for New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Aaalstance Progrem (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

TABLE 6.1-A Performaftca Reports and Uqiddatad Damages

Reporting Reference
(D

Name Typo Measure
Data Period

Standard Qua
Data

First Date
Required

Stattdard liquidated
Damaoaa

GRIEVANCE.02

Member Grievance

Dispositions Resolved
Within 14 Calendar

Days

Measure Quarteity
2 month after ervl

of reporting
period

100%

$0.01 PMPM
each quarter
acceptance rate
is not met.

GRIEVANCE.03
Member Grievance

Rate
Measure Quarterly

2 month after end

of reporting
period

<1%

$0.01 PMPM
each quarter
acceptar^e rate
is not met.

MEMCOMM.01

Meml)ef

Communications:

Average Speed to
Answer Wrthin 90

Seconds

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
>95%

MEMCOMM.02

Member

Connmunicaticns:

Average Wait Time
and Hold Status of
Less than 4 Minutes

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
>95%

MEMCOMM.03

Member

Communications:
Average Calls
Abarvjoned

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
<5%

$1,000 per
percentage point
above tfie

standard.

MEMC0MM.Q4

Memt>er

Communications:
Average (3alt
Blockage

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
0%

$1,000 per
percentage point
above the

standard.

EjMM a. ScDpo or Servicet
RfB-2017.0MBP<02-Tran«
Pieetteras

Contradoi Mtfate:OUrO
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Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Heatth Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Foe For Service Participants

TABLE 6.1-A PeffDrmancd Repofts and UqutdatMl Damagos

Reporting Refeiwiu*
(0

Name Type Mattlira
Data Period

Standard Due

Date

First Data

Requlmd
Standard LiquMatad

Damages

MEMCOMM.05

Member

Comnrunications:

Voice Maiis Returned

by Next Business Day

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
>95%

MILEAGE01

Utilization of Mileage
ReimtKJrsement

Proa ram
Table Monthly

2 months after

(he end of the

reportrnq period.

NEMT.01

NEMT Requests
Delivered by Mode of
Trart^oilation

Measure Quarterty
2 month after end

of reporting
perM

NEMT.02

NEMT Request
Authorization

Approval Rate by
Mc^ of
Transportation

Measure Quarterly
2 HTonths after

end of reporting
period

NEMT.03
NEMT Schedule Trip
Results by Outcome

Measure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

MEMT.04

NEMT Services

Delivered by Type of
Medical Service

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

end of reporting
period

NEMT.05
NEMT Service Use by
Population Measure Quarterty

2 months after

end of reporting
period

Emm a. Scope or ServicM
REB-»17-OMaP-02-TrBftt

Pogi 39 of 3S
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N«w Hampshim Oepartmant of HeafUi and Human Sarvicoa
Transportation ManagarMnt for Naw Hampshira Haalth Protaction Program (NHKPP)
Premium Assistanca Program (PAP) aivJ Paa For Sarvlca Parttefpaiits

TABLE 6.1^ Performafice Reports and Uqutdated Pamegea

Reporttng Refaisftce
ID

Name Type Nlessure

Data Pertod

Standard Due

Date

PIratDate
Reaulrad

Standard Liquldatad
Damawaa

NEMT.06

NEMT Scheduled Trip
Member Cancellations

by Reason for
Member Cancellation

for extracted

Providers

Measure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

NEMT.07
NEMT Scheduled Trip
Or>-tlme Provider Rate

Measure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

NEMT.OB

NEMT Scheduled

Trips Assigned Within
the Advanced Notice

Period

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

end of reporting
period

>98%

NEMT.09
NEMT Vendor No

Show Rate
Measure Quarterly

2 months after

ertd of reporting
period

>1%

$0.01 PMPM
each quarter the
target is not met.

NE7WORK.01
Comprehensive
Provider Network and

Memt>ef Access Plan

Plan Annually September 30th

60

calendar

days prior
to the start

of services.

NETWORK.02

Comprehensive
Provider Network and

Member Access

Report

Narrative

Report
Quarterly

2 rrxmths after

end of reporting
period

NE7WORK.03
Comprehensive
Network Eilinq

Table AnnuaDy September 30th

EjdtcM A, Scope of Ser>ifc»>
RFa-30f 7-OMBP-02Trtin

PegeMotas

Connector InOato

Oete
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Now HftmpsMrw Dftpartment of Health and Human Services
TranaportatJon Maragemerttfor New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premhim Atslslance Program (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

TABLE 6.1<A Peifdmianca Reports and Uquldsted Oamages

Reporting Referenee
(D

Name Type Measure

Data Period

Standard Due

Data

FlratDats
Reoutred

Standard Liquidated
Damagaa

PMP.01

Performance
Management and
Compliance Plan

Plan Annually August 31s(

Within 90

days of the
execution

of the

agreement.

PROVTERM.01
Provider Termtnalion

Log
Table As needed

Within 15

calendar days of
the notice of
termination or

effective date,
whichever is

sooner

VEHtCLESAFETY.Ol
Vehicle Daily Safety
Inspections

^asure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

j

VEH(CLESAFErf.02
Vehicle Daily Safety
Inspection Passed

Measure Ouarterty
2 months after

end of repoflrng
period

>95%

S2.S00 per
percent^e point
below the target.

VEHICLESAFETY.03

Vehicles Adhering to
Regular Preventive
Maintenance

Schedule

Measure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

>95%

^.000 per
percentage point
below the target.

WEATHER.01
Inclement Weather

Operatlonis Report
Narrative

Report
As Needed Daily as Needed

ExTM A. Scope cf Geivicei
RFB-2017OM8P-0Mr«na
Pipe 3S of 35
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Marugement for New Hampshire Heatth Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Fee For Service Participants

EXHIBIT A-1

ADDITIONAL SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Informational Technology Security Requirements

1.1. The vendor will sign and comply with any and all system access policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any DHHS system. This will be completed
prior to system access being authorized, and on a regular basis as requested
by DHHS.

1.2. The vendor will maintain proper security and privacy controls on its systems
according to applicable federal, state, and local regulations and align^ with
industry standards and best practices including but not limited to CMS Federal
regulations, HIPAA/HITECH, RSA 359c. Ensure the safe and secure
management of vulnerabilities through recurring - practice of identifying,
classifying, remediating, and mitigating threats.

1.3. Develop, maintain, and follow procedures to ensure that data is protected
throughout Its entire Information lifecycle (from creation, transformation, use,
storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data
(i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

1.4. The vendor will provide to DHHS on an annual basis a written attestation of
HIPAA compliance, which will demonstrate proper operational security and
privacy controls, policies, and procedures are in place and maintained within
their organization and any applicable sub-contractors.

1.5. The contractor will provide a documented process for securely disposing of
data, data storage hardware, and or media; and will obtain written certification
for any State data destroyed by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part of
ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations. When no longer in
use, electronic media containing DHHS data is rendered unrecoverable via a
secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing).

1.6. When using third party service providers to create, collect, access, transmit, or
store State of NH data, additional documentation may be required by the
vendor.

1.7. DHHS may from time to time audit the security mechanisms the vendor
maintains to safeguard access to the State of NH information, systems and
electronic communications. Audits may include examination of systems
security, associated administrative practices, arxi requests for additional
documentation in support of this contract.

Exnibit A-1 Addtkma] Soop* of S«fvfc«s ' Contractor Ntiab:(hlu
RFS-2017-OMBP-02-Trans ,
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee-For-Servlces (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation,
block 1.6, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. This Contract is funded with general and federal funds. Department access to
federal funding is dependent upon meeting the requirements set forth in the
Catalogue of Family and Domestic Assistance (CFDA).# 93.778 US Department of
Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services, Medicaid
Title XIX. Medical Assistance Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. DHHS will make a monthly retrospective payment to the Contractor for each
fee-for-service (FFS) or Premium Assistance Program (PAP) member
eligible during the month. Capitation will be processed no later than the 15*^^
day of the month for the previous month's capitation arrd will be paid no later
than the 30"^ day of that month.

3.2. The Department shall recover capitation payments made for deceased
members at six'(6) month Intervals. Capitation rates are as indicated in
Exhibit 8-1 Capitation Rate Sheet.

'  3.3. The Contractor shall submit encounters for trarisportation services provided
through the NH Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS) in the
Accredited Standards Committee (ASC) X12 837P claim format.

3.4. The Contractor shall receive capitation payment information from MMIS
using the ASC X12N 820 Professional transaction or other supplemental
payment reports.

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the
Form P37, General Provisions, Contract Completion Date. Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, In whole or in part, in the event of
honcompllance with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts t>etween budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, arxl to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

CooRflratM Trsnspofttfon S«fvic«s. inc. Echibli B Contncior inUi
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New Hampshire Oepartrhent of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee For Service (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Stieet

1. Capitation Rates are "per member / per month' amounts, based on the SFY 2016
eligible Premium Assistance and Fee For Service members not eligible for managed
care or Premium Assistance, Capitation Rates for calendar year 2017 and calendar
year 2018 are as specified in Table 1.1 below;

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rale Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17
Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18
Eligible
Members

SFY 2016

PAP members 40.000
FFS members 9.000

PAP members 40.000
FFS members 9,000

Per member

per month

rates

$10.06 $10.21

Annualize 9 12
Operations
Grand total $4,436,460 $6,003,480

Coordinated Transportation SotuUons. inc.
EiHbttS.1

RFB-2017.OMBP-02-Tr»tt
PaQ« 1 of 1

Contractor initiais:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SP^CIAI, PRpYI9!ftN9

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used onty as payment to tf̂ e Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Cor^llance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Iridividuats such eligibility determination shall be made In accordar>ce with applicable federal ar^
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Qigibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eliglbillty determinations that the Department may request or require.

/

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for senhces hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding thai determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall t>e permitted to fill out
an application form and that each a^iicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her r^ht to a fair
hearing in accordance vrith Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kiekfaacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any ofTicJals, officers, employees or agents of the C<mtr8ctor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroacthre Payments: Notwllhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly urKterstood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments mH be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provid^ to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no paymertts shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on vAilch the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notvrithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contair^ed shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate w4uch exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
furviers for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contrect or after receipt of the Fmal
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereurvler to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: ,
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior relmbursemert in

excess of costs;

C - SpKi«J Previ»ion» Coniisdor I
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H»w Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibtt C

7.3. Oemar>d repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor (n which event faBure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitt^ to determine the eligibiiily of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any ir^ividual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintonancs of Racords: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to rnaimaln the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting aB costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor durirtg the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and originat evidertce of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the

' Department.
8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment. atter>dance or visit records for each recipient of

senrices during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding Ute provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate ar^ as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscat year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-t33. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO startdards) as
they pertain to financial compliarKe audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

DepartmenL the United States Departmertt of Health ar^ Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excarpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit LiabiNties: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor (hat the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the DepartmenL all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confldantlality of Recorda; Ail Information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and ttte Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information.;disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their offidal duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, ttiat
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected wlh the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the reapient his
attorney or guardian.

EiriibH C - SfMCial Provbioro Contractor MtiM
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M«w Hampshire Oepartmerrt of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

NoMthstanding anything to the corrtrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foBowing
times if requested by the Department. -
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports corttainif>g a detailed description of

all costs end nor>-aIlowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shaO be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shaO be submitted within thir^ (30) days after the eruj of the term
of this Contract The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereut^er (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Firtal Expenditure Report the Department shaB disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shal) retain the right, at Its disaetion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums.from the Contractor.

13. Credlta: AJI documents, rwtices. press releases, research reports and other maleriab prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of this Contract shall irKlude tf« following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was finarxed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provkted in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other fur>ding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerehip: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS More printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail or1gir\ai materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource dredcries, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of FacUitlee: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any faciities
for provldlrtg services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and muriicipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, ar>d wiD at ail times comply with the terms and
corxfitions of each such Bcense or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of tlvs Contract the fadlHIes shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance wHh local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the redpierrt receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Ejtfirbil C - sptdal Prmblons Convictor Inttisll
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than S2S.000, or public grantees
with fewer tf̂ an SO employees, regardless of the amount of the awardr the recipient will provide an
EEOP CertiflcatJon Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non*
proht organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educatiortal institutions are exempt frbm the
EEOP requirement but ere required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP CertlhcatJon Forms are available at: ht!p://www.ojp.usdoi/about/ocr/pdfa/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficltncy (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency. 8r>d resuttir>g agency guidance, national origin
dcscrtmination ineludet dlKrtmlnetjon on the basis of limited English proficrerKy (LEP). To ensure

compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasortable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access k) its programs. ^

18. Pilot Program for Enhancen>ent of Contractor Employee Whbtleblower Protections: The
foOowing shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simi^lfted Acquisition Threshold as defined in 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistlebloa/er Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

WHistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in (he pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pitf). L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the wi«rkforce.
of employee whistlebtower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcorttracts over the simplified acquisiticn threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or futrctions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the detegated
functior>(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement (hat spe^es activities end reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions If
the sut>contractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, (he Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if tf>e subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perfomrance on an ongoing basis

Eitfubil C - Sptdal Provtsioni Corxi'actw IrVMiOv w
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated hjnctlons and
responsibilities, and M4ien the subcontractor's performance v^ll be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor idenlifies deficiendes or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take conective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
aliowabie and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting phnciples established in.accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

I

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor ager>cies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a deschption of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance vrith the terms and conditions of die Contr^ and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified acth/rty determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

contractor MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampsfvre
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch S4t-A, for the purpose of implemehting State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated tfiereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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" REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVIStONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or execub've action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the apprbpriaUon or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be Dable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
Slate shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, terminatjon or modification.
The Stale shall not l)e required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(8) identified In Nock 1.6 of the Gerwai Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the Gerwral Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amervJed by adding the
fNlowing language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any b'me for any reason, at the sofe discretion of
the State, 30 da^ after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exerd^ng its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of dients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Infonnatfon to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreemenl. including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
indudlng contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected IndlviduaJs
at>out the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communlcatkxts in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to five (5) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory p6rformar>ce of services end approval by the
Governor and ExecuUve Council.

cuwMS(ita7ij Pagtiori Oi1bc9 J )^j
Exr>ib(t C-1 - Revisions 10 SiandxrUProwfsiora Comrector trXUali



N«w Hampshire Department of HeaHh arKi Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATIOW REQARDIMG DRUG-f REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identlTied in Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foUowing Ceiltfication;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS
✓

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certiftcation is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D;41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations Mere amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
corrtractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sukxomractora) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in Beu of certificates for
each grant duhng the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out betow Is a
material representation of fact upon Mhich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wHI continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statemernnotlfytng employees that the unlawful manufacture. distnTjution.

dispensing, possession or use of a cor^oDed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken egainst employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1^. 1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
t .2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a dn^-free v^rkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, end employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violatiorts

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
' 1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writirrg of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpW'agraph i .4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, irrdudirrg position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaO include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Talcing one of the foUowing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

tennlnation, consistent with the requirements of the Rehablltatlon Act of 1973, as
emended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the srte(s) for the perfofmance of work done in
connection \Mth the specific gram.

Place of Performance (street address, dty, county, state, zip code) 0>sl aach location)

Check a if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportadon Solutions. Inc.

o
Oate Name: David L. White

,  TWe: President
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CEflTIFtCATlOH REGARDING LOaBYING

The Cor^actor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply Mlth the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Resthctions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's represerrtative. as Identlfted In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foilov^ng Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - COfrTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Sodal Services Block Grant Program under Title XX >
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tide IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and befief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an o^er or employee of any agency, a Member
of Cor>gress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. (f any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or v^ll be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting (o influence an offlcer or employee of any agency, a Membier of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress (n corv\ectian with this
Federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by apecifie mention aub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its (nstructiona, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
doeumenl for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aO sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

TNs certification is a material representation of fact upon vi^ich reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shaD be sut^ect to a civil penahy of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions, inc.

Q hh ))-?
Date Name: David L. While

Title; President'

Exhibit E - Cstitcslien Rea»Sing Lobbyirg Contractor INtiala.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provislone agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order I2S49 ar>d 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other ResponiibiGty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.tl and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foilowtng
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. . By signing and submitting this proposal (contrect). the prospective primary participaht is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inabfirty of a person to provide the certification required below will riot necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submK an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considefed in connection wKh the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHMS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliarKe vres placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If H is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knov4ngly rendered an erroneous cerlrficstion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* 'debarred,* 'suspended,* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'participant.* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,* 'principal,* 'proposal.* and
*voluntarily excluded,* as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12S49; 45 CFR Part 76- See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposai (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knovringly enter into any lovrer tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participatjon in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary parljcipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that K vmU include the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. IneCgfidity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpani in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless il knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
dedde the method and frequency by wtilch It determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shaD be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this dause. The knov^edge and
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infonnation of a participant is not required to exceed that ̂ ich Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions euthorixed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a tower tier covered transaction with a person who Is'
suspended, deban-ed, ineligible, or voiuntarBy excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant cert'ifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals;
11.1. are rtot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. dedared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excMed from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvi) Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitnjst
statutes or commission of embezdemenl, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Ifdlcted for otherwise criminally or dvlDy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appUcation/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) tenninated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signi^ and su^itting this lowvr tier proposal (contract), the prospeclrve lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knov^dge and belief thai it arrd Its prtncipais:
13.1. are not presently deban-ed, suspended, proposed for debarment, dedared Ineligible, or

vciuniarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, auch

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (coitract) (hat It will
include this dause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, (neiigibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* nwthcot modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Date Name: David L. White
Title: Prexident

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
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CERTIFICATION OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUiREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NCNDISCRHmNATtON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identlfred in Sections i.it and i.i2of the General Provisions, to execute the folldwtng
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, wfth any applicable
federal nondlscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or t>enefits. on the basis of race, color, reli^on, national origin, artd sex. The Ad
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal fundirtg under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, retiqion. national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistaiKe from discrimtnating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or actrvity);

• the RehabiOtation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans v4th Disabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131*34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial faciltties. and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685*86). which prohibits
scrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Secdons 6106-07). which prohibits disaimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
employment discriminelion;

• 28 C.F.R. pi 31 (U.S. Department of Jusbce Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regutations > Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection d the laws for faKh-based and community
organizations); &ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundarhental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblowef protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nationat Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. t.. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program tot
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out l>elow is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

EjOiibilC
Contractor inttiaU
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Senrices, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Sectfon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sectionsl.tl and 1.12 of the General Provtsipns. to execute the following
certification;'

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) Ihe Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions, inc.

)b)n
Date Name: David L. White

PresideniTide:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103*227, Part C' Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro^hildren Act of 1994
(Act), requkes that smoking not be permiited tn any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity artd used routinely or regulady for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
drectly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.' The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, tocitities funded solely by
Medicere or Medicaid furtds, arxj portions of faculties used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply v4th the provisiorts of the law may result in the Imposition of a cJvll monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compfiance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

t. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with an applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, PartC, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

i  ) f) (T^^-
Date Name: David L.Whito

Title: President
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public l.aw 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
QFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and 8ut>contr8Ctor8 and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. <

(1) DeflnWona.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of THIe 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entltv* has the meanmg given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record seT
In 45CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meahirSg as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* rrwans the Health Information TechnoloQV for Economic and Cfinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Relnveslmenl Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuai* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Senrices.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

OTPU Contfadar Wa«h ̂ ̂  U ̂
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Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Sccretarv' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Hearth and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rute' shall mean the Security Standards for, the Protection of Electronic Protected
Hearth Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Informfltion" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology starvlard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definrtions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amerfoed from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Bualneas Aaaoclata Use and Diacloaure of Protected Health Information.

a. Busir>ess Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to aU
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the'Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Assodate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the hearth care operatiorts of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business /^spciate must obtain, prior to. making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assumnces.^fr^ the third party that such PHI w31 be held confidentially arfo
used or further dlsciosed^ly as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; end (ii) an agreement from such thlid party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confldentlalrty of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such discfosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement disclose any PHI In response to a
request for discfosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objeds to such disclosure, the Business

3^2014 CittfaH I Cantractv kiltisls
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by addrtional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
Shan be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such edditionai restrictions and shall abide by any addKlonal security safeguards.

(3) _Qb1jaatlona and Activities of Bualness Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected heatth Information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risit assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall indude, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature aruj extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal polldes and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and dbclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (t). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractoris business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intend^ business associates, who will be recerving^PHI
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New Hampshife Department of Heafth and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall t>e governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use ar^ disciosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's com^kiance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an tndividual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to rulfill its

- obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fuffill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonvarded requests. However, if forwanjing the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosufes of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^ .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered-Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Oblloatlona of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall rwtiiy Business Associate of any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shad promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of perrrtission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Tefmlnation for Cauae

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timcframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that nelth^ termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall rep^ the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miaceflanaoug

Definitions and Reoulatorv Refererges. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Prtvecy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is r>ecessafY for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intefpretfltion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shaQ be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ̂
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Eihibit I

Seoreqation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severaNe.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnirication provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms artd conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

The Stat< Name of the Contractor f\

Slgn^re of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Deborah H. Foumler. Esq. David L. White

Name of Authorized Representative

Medicaid Director

Title of Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

President

Title of Authorized Representative
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Now Hampthire Oopattmont of Hoalth and Human Sarvlcea
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPABgWCY
ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardeea of IndividuaJ
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resuft in a total award equal to or over
S25,0W. the award (s subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Slices (OHHS) must report the fotJowIng Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of pMormance
9. Unique idenlifler of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total comperuation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80H of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is rwt already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amef>dment b made.
The Corrtractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisiorts agrees to comply with the provtsioni of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), end further'agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and l. 12 of the General Provisions
execute the foliowtng Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed irdormation as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human ServlMs and to comply with all appllcabte provisions of the Federal
Finandal Accountability and TransparerKy Act-

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

If7
Date Name: David L. White

Title; President
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PPRWA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
t>elowUsted questions ere true end accurate.

t. The DUNS number for your entity is: o8-/6f,

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grenta, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross r^^ues.frqm U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agrements?

NO y-- YES
If the ansvmr to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 abow is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1 S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 76^d)) or section 6104 of the Intema) Revenue Code of
19867

NO

If (he answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most higNy compensated ofAcers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: L. UHi

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount: 0(K)

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount
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